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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue
Revenue has increased by

over 82% in the last 3 years

from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is cover 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

@

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Cur Group was in a soud position coming out of

ne lockdown response 1o Cov.d-19 and our
business has cortnued © perfo

throughout the year

OUTt rOUSTHy
This year has zeen some
unforecasted growtn in value of certan ovisions

prmarnty driven by the mcrease in energy prices

Ferm Trading vimited ("the Company” or togetner
with its sybsidiaries "the Group') 1argets consistent
growt term, with a

focus on steady anc pre

n for snarenolders cver the long

dictab.e growth, s
pardculary mportant durng more challenging

economic conditions. We have a3

R

diversified and
rnature business befitting a Group with more thar
12 years of rading hstory and ambition The Groug
comprizes maore than 200 corrpan’es that have
opergted N a range of 2eciors over many years
generating steady lorg-te
shareholders

TN growth for Cur
Ye operate n essential sectors tiat
we expect (o perform stead ly through

volat ity

rrariet

From tnis secore base we have beern abie to add
incremartal expans.orn ard civersification r a

messured way throngn seexing ¢
new adjacent
with a

out opportunit es n
sectors. These sectors provige LS

platforrm o contnue 10 expand in Lne with

our exsting strategy. Today, our {Group Ccormorses
enérgy, property lerding, heaihcars infrastructure,
fbre ard nouse building divisions. We nave grown
o be a sgnicant presénce within our mos?

% of the JK's

established sectors, praducing 4.2%

soiar rgy and 177 of the UK's aorzbhore wind
energy oulput, and bulding a £261m short and
recium terrm erding business that facilitates the

corstruChon and mroroverrent CF hornes

Tre Company s srare price de-vereg 10% crowth
over the pa:t 12 manths, well ahead of cur arget

of 4% growih per annur The extraorainary growih

ic attributatle o our e e*cy dwvison, whaIcr has
benehtted ffor“”‘ & sigri:hcant norease i long-terr

energy prce forecasts and erergy forward rates
over the percd, inaddition to .

Af ation. T

crease in the value of our energy division was
supported by sciud operational performance across
ailt sectors and sone organic arowth in newer

sectors,

We remarn a suponartive
1,690 fuli-time staff ac
own and operate, and iﬂd‘ref:t employment

elecyer wih more than
s the busingsses that we
provided for hurdreds more pecple trrough

cortracts that we have ir place.

A reflection on our year
Qur ousiness r

aelivered consistent revenues whie growir‘lg capia.

aised £404rm frorm investors th s year.

deploymert, resaning m £712m in revenue
generated acress the Grouon (2021 £425m) ara nat
assets of £2,218m (2021 E1L888m restated)

ire financial statements for the year shaw an

operating croft cefore tax of £43r agairst our

all accounti=g proft Tn's

rabst p:fforrr'“n

5 & dwectresult of energy

producec by the groun being sold for hrgher crices

durirg the year. Almost 60% of cur ousine
comprizes renewalkle energy gererating asseis such

gs solar energy sies and wind farms, wh.ch grovide

lorg-term revenue strearrs, Tresze are intentoral Y%

diversified across a rarge of tecninciogies 1o mitugate

a”au 1 0oor Derformam:e ra soe cific sector and

contri b uie towards steady. pred ctacle share orice
growty, however their vaiues can still beimpacted
by changes in pricing anc demand We have seen
consecutive ard materzl Ncreases in long term
energy price forecasts and energy forwars rates
glooalyy over the 13
ecoromy recovers rom the Covid-19 pandernic,

st 15 monibs as the glotal

ang see result of

the conflic
factors nave maerialy increazed e

ks aternatve sources of energy as 2
tin Ukraine Awcng with nflation, thesa
value of ire

assals

Group's énergy a

] cthi
t~e LK commercal ard industna’ roctop salar
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starung corstruction on a large wind
farrn o Australia At the start of the year we added
nine addifiona: sites tc our reserve power division
wich brings us LD to 2€ sites in (ota [compared "o
ter sites for most of 2021) Tneze sites nave
performed aread of expectations, generating

ESITDA of £26m (2021 £Xmy durng the yeaar.

Cur successful and well-establisted piomass
div.sior conunues to perform wel and haz
celvered statle returns since acquisition in 2015
This vear, | have been particu.arly pleased to see
strong perfarrnance at our rewest biormass she 'n
Snetterton, £ast Angha, which was acguires in Adri
2021, proving to he g valuable agditior o ne
pusiness. Dunng the year we curchased a Waste-
to-Energy faciity currently unae corstraction ir
Ayrshire. The facility has heern in development for
three years and will be capable of processing over
185,600 twonnes per annurm of non-recyclable
Fousenod, commercizt and ndustr al waste wnich
would ctherwise be sent w iandhll or expored
This will generate 17 MWe of low caron eectricity,
ernough to power S0,000 Fomes it wili be the first
large-scale, subs dy fres waste-to-erergy project n
western Scotland and projected commpletion date s

in eary 2024,

Over recent years, mary of our erergy assets have
been under construchion which has contnbutea to
our greviously reporied accountng losses. Thig s
ses during growth phase

> finance costs

typical of such busines:

even whan cash generative, because

and accourtirg charges, such as deprecigton,

exceeded revenues. This divisior has now reached
ur target size and sector split.

coorgingly ths year | am pleased to report ar
accounting orofit before tax of £48m aganst au
pudgeted small accounting profit, Trus shghtly
larger than expectec oroft < due to the maturity of

the poriffolio ard higher energy prices; resulting in
ncreased revenue from cur energy division as well

as an ncrease 0 inflation (35 explaned betow),

PETE s
seinimEie

L Our proserty landing business makes ug around

27% of the Group and cornprises short and medium
term sacured 10ans 1o experiencec property
orofessionas This established part oF our business

coninued to perform well, folowing a short pencd

of slow down dunng Covid-19 when we
Pontentionally chose to wr te fewer loans. Our average

2

«car book was 182 [oans this year to U< porrowers

Curiending divsio
conservative loan to value levels (becw 70%), n

r has always cperated at

order that it mainta'ns access to valuaie secunty If
1 there is a reduction in progerty valies. This straegy
i nas sorved the Group well sirce inception 12 years
: ago. and 't has operated through periads of change
i several mes The Group s f2k ng a raturally
{ocaulious approach when assessing new lenaing

opportunites in lght of tne changng economic

outook To date, the Group has lent £2 2on of

Lo TaT el

croperty loans since incepiion in 2010, suffering

Poonly £6m 1 capital losses. This strong tracx« record

s the result of our careful approach in this sector,
compnsing disciplined due dilgence, conservative
oan-to-value ratios and an ability ang willingness to
{ reduce activity in this sector during trmes of
eCONoMIC Lncerainty. We wili continue o ado
this anproach tnroughout the coming year.

rie healthcare divisicn
¢ Group and s broaaly p erforming wel Our
ess, Rangefora Holdings

maxes Lp around 4% of the

Poratirement villages bus
: mted ("Rangeford’) contnued 1o sell apartments
at inree sites, commenced construction of a fourth
¢ owillage in Chertsey, and acguired a ffth location

i near Cambridge during the year Sales af the

an 2024,
i white construction at the Cambridge s is
expected 1o start in 2023 with the first sales

Cherisey site are expected to commerc

cormmencing in 2026

i Our fipre division was estabished in 2019 and

! oremains an area of growth for the Group, now
comensing of sa operating businesses Cur

! residental busnesses, Jurassic Fbre, Swisk F bre,
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Guganet ana Alpoints Fiore @re bulding uitra‘ast
‘fipre to the premises” broackand networks
regions of the UK whicr have been overiocked by
larger operaiors Giganet provides cornectivity 1o
Fiomes arid businesses across the UX using CityFiore
and Qpenreacr infrastructure arc Vinfi is o software
developmert company whicn has developed
proprietary coftware to allow Intenet Service
Providers to sel connactivity over who.esale enabled
networks, includirg Allpoirts Fiore Vorooss is the
LK's orly dedicatad enterpnise fibre network to focus
on provding conmervity to businesses in London,

In the year, cur residential fibre businesses
ng their

neworks 'n ihe Jomre Counties, the Scuth ard

contirued 1o invest canitan in expand:

Soutmwest of England, and are now ongocarding
CUSIGMErs (0 that retwcr<s, generaling recuiring
revenues for the Grcup Cur statc-of-the-art
networks are am‘ o meet custormer derrana for
higher roadban peed s required at a

more working-rrorm-nome ard increased usage of

result of

video-or-cerrand services. In London, Vorboss has
iz0 ccf*—tmued to build and has installed gver
S00km of 9ore with a commament to offer 10GEps
fibre to up 0 15,000 businesses in Central _ondon
by 2027

Wrst our fibre division rema ns ir a growt™ phase
for the next 3-5 vears we do not expect it toreport
an accounting profit,

Towards e end of the year, we added a now
property developer o the Group, with the acgu-sitior
of Buvia Homes UElivia™) for £85m Elvia is an
estzbiishec house burider developing mid-rmarket
famiy homes in London commuter 1owns gnd
villages Whie s represents a very sral pert of the

Group WE DaErn o grow It N g mieasured way over

then wit™ a0 ulbimate target (o delver
600 roresz per year, ncludirg 200 hgh gazhty
afforcaple horres. Eavia has a 37ong €x’sting
leaderskio tearn who are key to "unnng the business,

Inflation and Interest rates
The higher rate of inflation experencead this year
Nas been resporsiole for some of the

outperfcrmance adairst expeciations 1N the
{ Cormmpary's share pnce. HM Treasury forecast that
: hugh inflatien g likely 1o be present untd 2025, az 2

result we expect 1o raceive more reverue for tne

energy generated within our energy diviean, and &

nigher valae from the governmernt subs dies that
Sigls]
shart geriad of

Posome of our energy sites penefit from, incres
Ltme vahe cf tnose sites. However, &
higr infiation such as forecast has very little effect

or tre rate at which the Group is expecied 1o grow
Thig is because tre renewabic energy s tes we own

derive tier value fronn discounted orojectad future

casnflows cver the time they are expected 1o

operate o, typeally 20 years or more f the
autlock for long-term irflation were 10 nicrease,

~t
)
ol

impact on our snare pree should be positive
because - would intrease tne revelrue each of cur

es would expect to make, in contrast to &

ioreiatively fixed cost base,

I The expecied rise in imterest rates is forecast o
t perod of very
Treimmediate :mpact of this or our

low rates,
busres
our Groun s intentionally structured

5 s expected to be hroadly neutral since

S0 as notto

1 expenence signifcant valua eros on whian interest
rates cnange. We continue to take a caltious
toapproach with'r our lending business where the
nsirg irnterest rates are felt more clog eu and we
have the ab-lty to reduce e number of loans
we write or alter the risk profie of our loans
trrough reducg loar ¢ va.ue ratios of pausing
activ by In certan parts of tre market shoud trat
fee agpprconate

i ;zi;
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Current trading and outlook

Since the vear end, the Group hias continded to
cerform steadly from an operational perspective
and 1 lne witn our expectation: albeit we nave
seer shara price growth aheac of target due to the
continued Increaze ' long term energy price
forecasts. Our grow:h targerts for the Group over
the mediurmn anc and
we continue to tocus on mantarng a diversifed

lorg terrn remain uncharged,

bus:inzess that 1s capatle of deliverng more
precictabie growth for sharehaolders

The recently anncunced Electricity Generator Levy
BEGL withir the 2023 Finarce Bil, will have an
impact on the returrs gensrated 1o our energy
pOrtfcuo over the next 5 years Toisis further

discusizd nithe group finance review on page 27

Cur property lending business conunues to
perform srongly, with increasan deployment im this
sector since the year end. We focus on short term
loahs {our average current loan erm s 17 months,
aiies us to adapt to changes in sutlook
s .5 particularly important in the

wrich en
swiftly, we feel tn

current economic ckmate

Performrance in our healthcare division continees
to he stabie, and we continue o remain positive
about the ogoortumties o wmprove perfermance In

this secto

ald ot
nlire

Since year end, we have continued to b our
fibre networks, with construction racking
with our expectatons We continue (o review
opporiLnitics for both crgama and norganic
qrowth supporting our existing managemeant tearns

i delivering this strategy

Ir Secamber 2022 we have acgdired tne righ
T

£25m of ngnt to use mohile
UK, 1Lz makfng the

JCENLES rorm

firss step towards Decoming an

mob le viriugl recwork cperator

Cur rix of busine eas nas developed cver time

and may evclve further over the years ahiead, driven

by tne overarchng importarce we place on

reeung the obectives of our sharenolders This
should net be read as ary indcation of a wholesale
channe ir the seciors .nowhich we operate, but as =

reflection of the role played by the strategic

manaate in protecting shareho!ders interesis,

"Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do
Fern Trackng Lirnited ["Fern") s the parent cormoany
of nearly 420 suosidiarie
Growp cperates across fve key are

5 ft@gether the "Group”) Our
5. BNErgy.

bre and house buiding Cver
puilt a carefully
diversifed group of operating busine

healtncare, lenrdirg,

the paci tweive years we ha

os that are

well positioned to delver long-term value and
pred ctable growth for cur shareholders

1. Energy division
‘We generaie power from sustamanle sources and
=11

the energy produced eher direclly to ndustrial
consuer

S of 1o large nawworks, Many of cur
renawab'e energy s-tes gualty for goverrmen:
incentives, which represent en addibioral sorce of
income We have also Wlised our expertise 'n
renewable energy to construct facibhies for sale or

o

ongoing operaticn AT year end the Group N
21 sites under construction,

2. Healthcare division
We provide romes and leswre facilities to Gur

ageing pooulation, and private hogpitals which

provide higr-gualty healthcare services across

operational wies in the UK

3. Lending division
We tend on a short and medium term, secured

1 obasic 1o g iarge ramner of property professionals
We zlso provioe financng to erable othar DLENess
to build assets and other resident.at and
commercial properties

i 4. Fibre division

We own and operate Fbre breadtana netwers

P across vanous areas of the LK We build e

rewworks and conrect them ¢ homes ang

23 10 provide our customers with Llirafast

5. Home building division
P Duning the year we successhiiily entered ine house
puding secto -

r,ac fomes which has
strong track recora of developing horrez ina

~quiring Lovia

sustarnable manner, Thne company < a fuil-zervice
progerty develsper, Meaning it provides $8rvices
from the des'gn, o the engneering arc then a1at
P ocenstructon o ensure ne delivery of quanty

wWorsranship.

Solar, wind,

. Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre . .
i ;lg;?lasz,s development villages, private broadband across Res#dbeﬂ;a:;house
gas. financing hospitats the UK d

reserve power

mact o

Non Operatoral Constilonmn
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QOur business at a glance

The srength of ¢ oth s
operational diversity and the return profiie of these

sur Groug's slrategy is in
businesses. Cur lencing busiress orovides flaxibly

and strong returas over the short term, while our
energy. Nealthcare, fiore and home pulid ng
drssions offer visibialy and stability of returns over

the lorge- tarm.

The scac of our bus: Cemabing

Us L0 acquire large-s
well as the cprcriunity 1o enter nevy sectors with

minirna. risk i the whaole Group by selecting

Sector split’

Wind 22% -,

olar 20% -~

Reserve power 6% -7

B B Owning and operating assats 69%
M # Lending 31%

Sector splitis g

givern by value, as represented

Other 3/0

Fern's sector
allocation

usinesses with comprerensive Duiness plars and

(&)

rong management teams This enables us to

(%)

continue o diversify cur tusiness wihout

COMpromising on tre quality of our operations.
Owver the past three years, we have successfully
entered the fiore broadband sector and we now

OWN SIX COmEanies with exciing olens to debver
Litrafast hroadband aoross the UKL
Healthcare 1%
- Property 27%

- Regerve power 2%
— Solar 1%

~--Fibre 5%

“o-Healthcare 4%

~Landhll gas and biomass 9%

o the cormpany balance sheet of Fern Tracing Lirmited
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Our business at a glance |

Whaere we oparate i

We are proud that the businesses ' i

within cur Group make a positive -

cornbution to society. from ) i

gererating clean erergy 10 the o ,)\ !

creation of hiormes and the provision | - @ ;

of guatty healthcare nfrastructore. 5 L )f‘ !

|

!

!

|

:

i

;

i

!

;

e  Solar sites E

® Laran gas facilties

;‘ Biomsss power stations !

’f Wind farrns 1

Bl feserve oo ,

o |

|

L !
As we'vE QICWT OUr eXRerTse in thesa sectors 1n the UK, we

jo)
T
T
o
[S1]
o
[
-t
O
-
o
M
o]
<
=
5
Q
-
o
o
o
A
]
aQ
M
[aR
0
[p]
ot
(&)

Ve
take our expertse 1o exciting coportunities cversaas, inC.uding censiructing soiar and wind farms i
Austraia, France, ireland, Poland ano Finlard




2 | STRATEG

O REPORT

Our business at a glance

Making & difference
We are proud to operate a Group that makes a
oositive contrbut'on to society acress the UK
generating renswaosle erergy, providing ma'u*_/

nea.thcare infrasructure and rearerent living anc

agelvernng nigh-sneea breadiband to undersarved

areas ©f the country

Energy

We currentiy own 220 energy sies
375CW a year. That's

a milron homes

producing

encLgh energy o power over

Cur combination of technologies soiar wind,
225 ard .ardfill gas
otrer well, heping the U io

reserve power, bio

comoernent each «

maet ts energy targets irrespective of the weather
Jy arg pec

The Fern Community Fund s a social enterprice run
oy the Grous, which wor<s to distnbute cormmun.ty
funds generated from ou- wind farms. This year, the
Fern Commurity Fund has awarced £1 4m o {ocsl
cornmun ty groups, sagpporiad 13 locat unversity
studerts trough cur Student Scholarship Furd

and provided a werter fuel subsiay to 700 resicenis
who ae local 1o the Group's a35efs
Healthcare

orovide hugh-guabty,
25, with 279
in place, and

Qur retirement villages p

conterrparary Livlm spa
accommodation urits currenty
schemes In varicus stages of development offering

cver 500 add'tional accommodat-an units

A friendly community is at the heart of our
retrernent villages, whichi s why i our
developmerts we grovide cenral facibties and a

nub of social acuvity for our residents.

Lending

The loans we made durirg the year have helped to
fund the construction of student accommodaticon
and much needed residertial properties

We continue 1o exiend oans o 24 tax drivers and
nle trem w0 use elecinc vericles,

fleets to era

requcing carbon emissions in our cadital

Fibre

Through our fibre division we are bu'lding out the
fiore optic oroadband network across the UK Four
of cur management tearms are focussad on
building out ibre optic broadband relworks for
busimesses, and a
enterprise

residental cusiomers and small
fifth 1s building a fibre netwerk 1o delver
connectvity Our sixth s a sofiware development
company operatng ir the fibre sector and

providing services 1o oLl groLp Cormpanies

Within thg plans to create a
network providing corneciiv iy o over one rmik on

rnary of which

dwvision we nave

properties in the next three years,
are 1n srall townrs ard vllages trat don't curently
have access taintermet comectivity &t for modern

ways of work ng ard commuricating

Not only are oJr fibre tusinesses bringing

connecovity to underserved comimunities, they are
alse gereratng employment cpporianives for
yoUng individu

agprennceship schemes, an

[s via train ng academies and

g are dryving diversity io
Telecoms, with one of our cormpanies raving
launched a number of INnitiatives 1o rezruit waormen

nto the secor

Home building
Our horme puilding division utilises 3 high

proportion of sustainable tmber frame construction

lis air scurce heat purnps in all
5. leading the way in ths sector and

methods and insta
propertie
helping reduce carbon emissions.
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Our strategy in focus

Crur businesses

Energy

Trroughn our energy division, the Group owns and
operates ene-gy stes which supply gas and

the netwerk, a3 well as const-ucing
> Of the 220
anergy wstes that we awn and operate, 194 provide

electnicity nto
rerewabie energy sites for future sale
renewahie energy, conrinuting to the Groun's
pos;ﬁ;'on as one of the largest producers of

rerewzhie energy from commerciat scaie solar sites
in trie UK. Energy sites are typcaly expected to
generate stable profits for many years, as such
cwning ard eperati~g these pusiraesses is attraclive

to e Gro

o because of ther potental to deliver

p’cﬁts over t

predictable

ne long werm

Renewab.e energy sites generae power from

>
U_)

sustananie sources ard sell energy praduced 2ithar
cirectly to large industr al consumers or to the
newwor<. Many of our renewatle energy sites alse
qual fy for government incentives, wh o rasults 1 a

pcrtion of the generated energy benefit ng from

—r

raves that are 'locked in' for g specifiec pencd once
a qualitying se = cocrational and accredtation has
been grarted Ths has recduced some of the impacs
of tne volatility in.ong term energy proe forecasts

Az new sites Bt in the UK do not gualify for

hstoric govermment INcentives, we are seeng mare

rigrest in the market for sites ke

2 ONes we Own

and coerate.

stes s g core part of
LE0% of
of Gur Grc-pp has

Ownng and cperanng eﬂEfgy
tiy

2
O
Il
C
<
H
®
5
Q
a
=
T
i
<
5
2
5
f)

Did you know?

generated higner retums ths year than expecles
oueg o market corditons but crucsally it has the
potentiat o provide stable rgturns over the long-
term, This combrnation is xey to cur strategy t
balance risk a~d return s2ross tne range of Grour

act v ties to genarate target returns for shareholders

“Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due o the high-guality emergy S We W, we

are acle to sacure long-term financing rom

rmanstrezm harks at compent've raies o enngnce
o celiver the leval of

returrs oLr shareh.olders expect

oUr rewums, wh e nelps us t

Whiie our rernéwacle eneqy business tarted lfe in

tre solar energy secior, the Jroup has bu.lr

exgertise gCross otner adjacent technaologies
including cnshcre wind, b Gmass and landfll gas,
supported by reserve power plants which provide

backup power 0 the NMatona: Gric Tne Group

trerefore bernefis from dversAcation within this
part cf its ousimess, since waaker corditions for
energy proddction from ore technoiogy ofter resilt
nStronGer protucton elsewhere The Grouo 250

gains agm;ncani seneat frorn its scale n this sector

a5 OUr DUSMEss < spread atross over 220 st
vastly reducing e nsk o Growp orod tab-li:y I Gne
site suffers an operat onal disrupticon

iIf laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.




Our strategy in focus

In additior @ cur K sites, the Grous s deve.oping
sites overseas, nunsd-ctions that we understand i seenan ncrease 10 the number of patients paying
wes These present an atiractive opporiunty as they & fc-r theirr owr treaiment as thay face long walting
ists for NHS treatment. Despite the lift :ng cf
widesprc-ac rastrictions across the UK, Cowd-19

Sirce returnmg to normal working patierns we have

buid on cur sector expertise in courtres at an

earlier stage of rerewabie develooment. Cur-enlly
continues o affect tre acute care sector with a
stressed NHS ard increazsed infecuon control

we operate wird farms in lreand and France and
olar sites in Frarce and Australiz. We have several

werd aites under comsiruction i Poland, France measures that reman in place

and A stralia .
‘ Lending

Lending continues 1 be & core part of our pLsiness
ard Fas provided the Grouo with g profitazle ard

During tne year we acqdired ring reserve power
olants and one energy from waste sie. Fellowing
corstruction, we sold two wind farms in Enland and

8

ash generative sector over the past twewve years,
Thiz well-established part of oLr Group mairly
onsists of property lending, which grovides

shority alter the year erd we also sold Carlington

Poing, a large sciar s t2 10 Australia

]

W

nort-ierm ﬁﬂaﬂCf!’W to experienced professional
Healthcare G Lo expEn v

Through our healheare divsion. tre Groo cpenty developers, buy-to-tet [andlords seekitg
3

ore
U . eridg:ng firance; ard deve.cpment financing,
cperaes in tne private medical and retremert iving

| wich provises short and medium erm financin
sectors QOur -etrement Pving business, Rangeford, Ien pre ° - o o E

owng ard operates two retirement vilages in e companies
Wiltshire: ard Mortn Yorkshire and is curreritly A key beneht of tme scae of cur Group and of the
developing thres further sites for future operations. ousiness that wa have buit up in thiz sector i our
abdity to mitgate risk througn having a large

Qur prvate medical busimess, One Healthcare owns
i rurber of short and med um term cans spread
and operates twao private nospitals in £ent ano

. o across small projects to ncividual borrowers, We
Herifordshire, providing ihe very best tevel of care

) croactively manage counterparty risks through
in madern, well equipped hospital facilit:es. N Y MAanage courerparty R

Jndertaking careful cor-ower due diligence, taking

“Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable

and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.

¥
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QOur strategy in focus

security over assets tynically on a first charge basis
and mamtaning conservative loan-te-value ratios
MNot at ioans will perform as expecred and thase
measdJres help to minimise the impact of
performance issues an an individua. loan "hs's
further rriigatec througn the value that we iend 1o
irdwidual porrowers, relstive to our 10%al lcan ook,
which is currently spread on average across 182

loans, with an average ncvdual loan of £2 2m,

Fibre division

Qur fibre division inciudes five cperatonal
comparies building fibre networks in the UK ana
one softwara developmert company

Trirough owr residental —ibre busiresies, we are
butlding rew ohysical fibre networks for
comrmurities in the UK and so far have cuilt ou

fibre INfrastructure \n undarserved parts of Deven,
Somersct, Dorsel, Witshire, Harpsrhire,
Worcestarshire and the Home Cournties We are
armng to pasg cver ore rmillion homes over the
rnaxt three years

Buld'ng tnese large networss nvolves conrecting
large catacentres and telephone exchanges n the
UK with niomes are businesses, efectivey
reptacing the copper wires taat were la:d Iin ne first
hal® of the 20tk cenury Jurassic, Swish and
Ciganet are verucaily mtegrated, as they bath own

=}

P

e fitre infrastruciure and also nave the enc
cusiomer relationship as the ntermet service

provider or “ISPT Allpoints owns fibre infractructure
and wiid onboard other 1SPs to the Alponts netwaork
to sel connectivity to the erd cusiomer.

Thrcugn Vorboss, we are bulding a network in
London to suppy business-to-buziness "BZB™
enterpise connesiivity direct 1o busiress
customers. Yorocss kas installed over S00km of
fbre optc cables in London since 2070 anc has
rigle 10Chps product @
rnar<et, recogrising that ambiious London

recenty laurcred a s

bucinesses wili guIc<iy r more than the 1Gops

cornectivity they've rehed on o date,
‘We have sean rgpid growih in our fibre div.sion
I

018 and we expect this division o contirue

part of cur ousiNess over firme
T'we Group expects 1o spend approximaiely £1on of
ca o fulfil its build plans and reack
more commurnities ir need of ultrafast broadband

Home building

Our new home ouitding business, Elivia s a full

service nouseculeer, &cmnng land, ceveloping e
zite, and subs the ornes W
indwv'dual buyers. Trese
marke: and afordable n

gk quality asp=ra:%ona‘t fomes The Bbasress s

x.(

en |rv‘lud-ﬁ amxof coen
o Jses and srive to deliver

growing fast with projected annuaal turr over of
£25Cm and 500 houses oult per year forecasted
with n she rext 2-3 years
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are respensible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Faul Lathawy 7 070

Paul iz Cnief Fxecutive of Fern and is responsible for the day-to-day runnang of the
business. He is also a managirg director of Octopds Investments Limitea (357
where e nas worked since 2005 & is a key supplier of resource and exgerise
to Fern Paul's dual roie ersdres that this relatonstip works effectively and in the
pest interests of Fern's shareholders, Paul nas had various genaal management

and internal consulting ~oles across a numicer of sectors and brings witn -im

a wezltn of industry and business expenence.

= KHeith Willey o emnie Ura - mas
Ketth is an associate professor of strategy ana e~trepreneurs—p at London
choo. ke alzo howds vanous non-executive directorshups and advisory

-
%]
5
[4)]
%3]
[ig]
LN

roles af hign growtn and more matare companies. In hit rele as non-executive
charman ke is responsble for the efective operation ©° the Board, as well
as its governance He brngs to the Fern pusiness independent commercial
experience gaired frem his time in academia, private ecuty investment,

consuding and various hands-on cperationsl roles

Pater Barlow 0 S eoL oo D e

Peter nas cver 20 years exper ence ininternational inancirg of mfrastructure ard energy
As a senor execuive for nternational Powaer, Peter was responsble for arrarging over
S12or of project and corporate furding, as well as banking reldionships and treasury
activites. He nas spent aver 20 years working intematoraly for HSEC, Bark of
America and Nomura, finarcng acguisitons and greenfield projects in the eneqqy
and infrastructure sectors His cempbinaton of Board-tevel finanaing and energy
experience over NUMerous energy sub-teciors, and ks at-round krowledge of
all tre sectors inwhich Fen coerates. adds significant value to the operation of

tre Board as well as its strategy formation and deployment

Th Arthar o -l oy Do
Tim is a chartered accountant with more than 25 years' intermational experierce
as a finance director of both pushe and prvate companies. Imtislly he worked
for Price Waterhouse ir Birmingkham and Chicage. More recenty he was Chief
Financial Officer of Ligntzource Renewable Energy Ld, a gwobal leader in the
furdirg, developmert anc long-term operation of solar phetovwoitaic projects

Timr bnngs extensive financial end accountancy krowledge o the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic techno.ogy businesse: gaired from i
executve postions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Pringipal risks

<

laragement idennfy zssess and manage nsks

associated with the Group's ousiness object'ves an

Pons

8}

strategy. Risks anse from external sources. those

which are inherent corrme

The principa. ns«s that the Group are exposad to
are descrbed beiow, alang w ih the muigating

crs we ake o reduce the potential imgact of
risks i tha market, @ t-e risk. We also include our azsessment of wnestner

and from operat\oma! risks contained within tne ! otre likelinood of the risk has ircreased, decrease
systems ard processes employed with'n the Poorremained the same.

business. Overall nsk exposure s managed acros
the Group through tne diversification of activiies,

both by sector and geography.

Risk Mltlgatlons

Market rlsk » Contracts are entered into vvh h f‘>r *hﬁ neorme f ra

The energy sector s exgenancng pordcn of the energy generated by cuar siies

significant turbulerce and there iz + Lorng-term governmen: bacxed offigke agreerments ae

a s« that forecast levels of Income in place, such as the Renewable Celigation Zerufication
are not ackieved due to chianges in "ROCT scheme 30% of Qur energy income was
wholesale energy prices, of-take gereraiec from ROC revenue.

cortracts or governrmen: suosidies.  « We engage with tne government and the Office of Gas ard
Due o this turbuier‘;i anvironmant, Electricity Markets {"ORGEM™) to corntribute 'o an irdustry voice

tne potenta. for increased with policy maxers who set future regulatory requirerents.
interventon by th requlatoris as
arsH

Cranges in Government policy

rnay result N recduced Income

strearns within the group dus to
dﬁmondt ‘evics

Operatlonal risk « unprediciability of me weather s mitigated through

lLevels of energy produced may dwversification of tlechnclogies and wostion of sites

be lower than ant cipaten due to » Reguiar servicing of assets s underisxer (o ensure assets
sub-opiiral weather condittons are kept 1 good cond.tion and minimise the nsk that

or performarce issues with assets are unavailable for g ‘onger perod

equiprment, which may resalt in
sigrificant urp.anned downt

me.

Financial risk: .

FYement ensuras ony 3 smiatl poruon G ine Grous’s
Revenues (from energy ASIETE gna revenues are exparcted to ke derveg from
generation) or sale proceads ovErseas sites
from the sae of sites) generafed
from oversess sites are iower than

expecied due to fluctuations .n
fore-gn exchangs rates

Construction risk' « Tne Group eners ﬁxe’j Chce Cconiracis with contracions
Consructon of here aopropriate o de UCE exposare o Increasing Costs

onNger or s more F’“S\.j g
art f‘-pa ed due o resource

Change

4

Increased
{due o rmarket
instanitiy}

NO Cnange

increas=a (due
to volatile £ X
novernents)

No charces




i

Risk
Market risk:
Expecied sa
are lower tha antc
increased cormpetit
provicers.

es from custorer
pated due
' rm ‘from otaer

A change in policy by the
regulators in favour of iarger
operators couls IMpact our ak
to deliver plannec aeveloprnent
reducing reveriues and efficiencies
gained frorm alarge: nresence g
pdr ”“Jtar ared

Constructmn rlsk
Corstruction of tne netwaork
takes longer Oris maore _,swy
than anticipated due o resoudrce
avadlabnit

Y

vy or Increased r:Qst of
raws raterials

Operational risk:

Ne&wcrk service IS Nterrugted or
nrelabe leadi~g to cotential iczs

‘Df custormers ard reputanonal

darnage.

e Torua, i
s

s.w

A R SRS S B s W 00

. Managpmwm reg-ﬂar} reviews the comoeutive 1ands
innarget Duilo areas to ensure pans
otoer giternative rebwork Operatcrs.

« Managemert engages preactvely witn the Office of
Communicaucns ana the Goverrment to ensure t k

benehty of arraller coerators are weill uncerstond a
wcwred

Iela'd

(A

supplers to reduce the exposure 1o any ore INdivicuat
ertity Seiection of outsource pariners s manageou

Change

a0 v ot b e

cape

oo not conflictveth

» ne Group has cortractea wiin a number of aiferent

trrcugh a deailed procurement process with lorg term

wvisin bty of werk alicwing partrers
cecple resgurces accordingty.

» Where supply chan prebiems are expect
items our teams generalty have 6 monihs stock
duct and other materiais on hand, ard sdvance or
t@d“mua equi pmen wwth L\mg t ad tmm

.
%
40)
=~
o]
wn
D
j
‘;
o
‘-‘,
<:
:*.
O
=
i
=
W
)

ity to wder‘-::‘y ahd resove

o plar financial ard

corre ,t\viﬁy ssues guickly, mrimises downbime of the

e‘i'm« Y Sanihs f Rl
A ‘\ "? i
it

4

IncCreased
(due o mMmore
compenitors n

the market)

Increased (due
to Increasing
demand for
rescurce Ir
the sector a3

alternat:ve
network
croy-ders scale
D))

o change
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mitigations Change
Market rtsk Tﬂ@ teams pro dcrivc-iw marage odr positon in the
Increasing inflation ard nterest marketplace and are prenarad to en'orce where needed if
rates lead to & market-wide aloan moves into defaJlt
affordability ssue, resuitrg N a » Our loans are rmade at conservative [Dan-w0-value (LTY) e
drop in DTC;DE‘TEy Yalues a{@gs alt ratios with a maximum LTV of 70%. N ?}Ww -
sectars of real estate. This may lo change
impact our aoility (o recover a
warn fuli througn a refinance
or saie
Counterparty nsk' * Loans are secured agans tghysffaé underlyng sacurity,
Loans may be made 1o unsuitabie sLchasacha ge over the prope \/ cr other assets of the
Counerparties, Impanting our borrcwer. Tnese are typicely on a irstcharge bass o
ability to recover the lcan balarce ensure maximur cnance of recovery sh“uif} nforcerrert ,%\
rofuid acuon ke nesced. meressad due
« Trnorough due diligence is parformed gnor @ wrting o urclable
lcans, meluding propersy or land valuauons and Cfedx'f EConomIc
checxs done on borrowers. chimatg)
o Weore inars are writter for asseis under construchon,

milestones and covenarts are pul 1IN Sace (o enture
stages are dmp‘ie-te orior to reteas ng further drawdowns

Mltlgatlons

Market risk (Healthcare and . Ptafm.ng cansents on wd& oetion
Home Building): mMaxirr 58 revenues and re”iufe *“m r\sk oFf O5583 0N Sae
Afailin house prices could

rpact our atility to generate

Increasec (due
to anztanle
expectec reverue from The sgie [slelolatolonlles
T
Gf apartments In our retirement Cumaiel

vilages ard houses bul't by Elivia.

Construction risk {Healthcare « Tre Groagp enters fixed price coniracts where approoriate
and Home Building): to reduce exposiLre 1O INCreasing materiat costs
Construgtion takes longer or « Tne Group only works witn reputable Zrd parties with a

S More Cos :y thar antic pated strong track record of deliverng sivivar projects,

due ro resource avallaciaty or
gco to‘ rEw Nates

Heatth and Safety risk .

OuD Mar@ms rohLst oolmes ard proced ares
(Healthcare): 111G 10 e Drovis on of medical services, We rey ew this
Tre prevenhor of injury ¢ ; 1 condoctirg regular mternal irspect.ons, ana are
avoidabie Igss cf lif of our DJeF‘ to exiernal 1nspellions Cy reculsicry bodies I
pateriss of Wtmost imporiance . ri place to Ccover e
nd s cntical to martaning a rraciice Cigd ms ~O Change

D 2]

ood reputat'on. Litgation as

a rcsul* of med':a rralpractice
t




Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk: « Where floating rate debtis in place lwrere riterest varies

An increase n Lase rates may i hine with an underly ng senchimarx rate), the Grouop

Incresse costs on debt faciities, enters ntQ Fedging arrangements 1o Gx a portion of these Acreased

rmeaching tne Groug's ablity to payrments throughout tne term of tre facility Hedgng [duetoroe r

service cebt as it falls due, arrangements are ouwllined in Mote 21 of the finanasl interest raies)
ststemients,

Liquidity risk: + Adetalled cash fiow forecast is prepared anc reviewed

FPoor manage~ent of cash wiiin by rranagement on a monthiy bas s, incorporating cash

the Group could mpac: the availability and cash reguiremenis across tne Groug On at

Group's abiflzy o meen abligations lezst 3 quarterly basis this 15 snarad with the Board

as they “ail due. « The Group rmarstors bark covenants on an ongcing bass e

tooensura contnued adiherence o covenants, Wnere
covenants can't be met, forecasts are updated for the
lower cash avalabe as 3 result of the resinchon.

+ The Group kas a ‘lexitie firance facility which can be
drawe on at short ohce to meetimmediate busness

No change

rieeds
Health and Safety risk: « W have devewoped rebust healtn and safety polic es ir
The safely of our employees compliance with 13045001 across tne Group to ersure
and thote employed trrougn the well-being of our staff
contracts are of paramaun: o Hezlth and sa‘ety training 15 provides 1o our sta and . .
impaortance Thers s a ns< that contractors on a reqular bas s eresses
accldentsin tre warkplace could
result in sencus INjury or death.
Cyber Security risk: » We erploy a Chief Intormaton Secunity Gifhcer (TS0
An attack or our T systems and who ic responcible for data securnty acress the Group and
data couid lead o disruption reports quartarly to the Board, —
of our operations and loss of o The CISO works closely with cur businessas te ensure R
customer data Loss or misuse adequate standards of secunty anc information No change
of data may result r reputatonal managemen: are met
damage, regulaiory action under » Fach of cur businesses that hald custorner data nas ther
GDPR and potential fines owrt cedicated resource for [T and security

Tre strategic report was approved by the Board of Direciors on 16 Decernber 2022 and signed on (s tehalf oy

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

GaxrihitaliE IO
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Corporate governance

Section 172 1) statemant

“he Board consider that they have adhered © the
requirements of secton 172 of the Compan es Act
2006 (the "Act’), and have, Ir gcod faith, azed in a

way that waould be mest likely to promote the

success of the Group for the beneht of it memibsers

as a whole (having regard to all stakeroders and

maters set out in secticn 172{1a-f) o

ir the decisions taken during the year ended
20 June 2022

In the performance of its duty (o promote the
e Group, the Boara has regard =
numizer of matiers, iNcluding the ikely
nce of any decis'ons in the .ong term, and
Ustenis to tne views ¢f the Group's key stakehoiders
o budld trust andg ensure it fully understands the

cotential impacts of the decisionz it makes Tne
Beard fulfils trese duties partly by delegation o
commitices and the boards of supsid ary

urdartakings, who operate witin a corporate

Sovarnance frarmework acress the Group

At evary Board meeting a review of heslth and
safety across e group, financial and operatcral
cerforrance, as wel as legal and regu%alory
compilance, 1s undecaken The Beard alsa review
cther areas over the course of the financia. year
mcluding tme Group's DusinNess sirategy, xey ris<s,
stakoncleer-related matters, diversity and inclusivity,
eavironmental matters, cornorate respansicitly, anc

governance, corpliance and legal matters

Principal decisions
We cefine princ.pal decisions taken by
those dec.siors tnar are of a strateg ¢

~e Board az
nature and
trat are significart 1o any of Sur <ey stakerclder
groups. ' he Boeard consider that the foliowirg are
examp.es of princinal decscre it made in the year
e~dec 30 Junec 2022,

e Evaluat~g ard cediging Lo move angan with

incressing wind opergticns, whicr iz part of
el

motn August 2021 tre

cur renewalles divi

iy

Group acqured a large scale, ready to corstruct

wind sttein Australia This depwooyment aligns

with the Group's strategy o convnue o

develop renewable emergy s'tes wh ch provide
pred:ctanle, long-term reverue streams, The
Board

aligned with cur cbiectves to ma<e a positve

conmucered the opporturity and now it

contrbuton to the community and environment,

The ”('u cecded © D EARANG N0 Ol Newast

division, house bailamg In May 2022 tne Grou
acquired Elv s horres, a ful-servce oroperty
deveioper, providing services frorm the dezign,

“o the engneerning and then Anal cerstrucoon

G ensure the delvary of quality workmanship.
Crversifying the Croup's asset base and entering
irto this ~ew secior has been well thougnt

cub witr long lerm growth in mind, The Board
assessed the strategc opoorturities within the
sector befcre deaiding to move ahead with this
acgusinon, consicenng how tris would imoact
OXIBING Duairessas witair the divisior and how

#atigned witn tne Group's srateqic obectives 1o

detver long-term value and predictebie growth
for our shareroldes

Peviewwr!g and decidirg 1o move anezd with
iomass operaticns wiich is part of
cur renewab.es divis on. In Gomober 2021 the
Group ac:qu:-’erj a [arge sCae, wasle-lo-erergy
scotiand Trus decloyment
ategy to cortnue o

Q)
O
)
i
&
=
=
e
—_
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Q
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divarsify the Group, de lop renewadle energy
ses which provide pred.ctable, laong-term
reverus streams, anc prov:da reslierce against
wrolesale proirg cranges or tre UK enargy
rrar<et “he Board consic

=red the ogpportunty

LJ‘
fl')
]
2
W
e
g

and how it aligred with cur G

make a oesitive contrbuhor IO e community

and envronmert



Corporate governance

+ The board decide
tende- process for the vear ended 30 June 2022
The Group had since the
orevicus additors were appoinied ard therefcre

d to change audit firms via a

changed cigificantly

we were unable to redably atsess the vaue for
money we receved Three firms unaewent
and Ermst 8

setecied hecause of thar strong co

the tender process oung LLP were
mmercia;
unoarstanding of our bLsimess, eficient aucit

metrocology and value for money.

Business strategy

Qur business strategy 1§ set oLt on pages 11 o 14 of
the Strategic Regort. Managerment prepares

detated Group sudget whicns approved C me
Board on an annual basis and forms the bass for
the Group's rescurce planning and de.clo-fmer'ut
decisicns Ir makmq Jecis ons conceraing tne
busness ptan, the Board has regard first and
talso to other
sUCh az the interests of 43 vanous

foremrost to s strateq ¢ focus, bu
matters
stakenolders and the lorng-term impgact o its

aclions on the Group's fuiure and reputation

Shareholders

Sharehcicer reiatiors ard generaung shareholger
value is a key corsideration when the Board s
making strateaic decisions. “he pame medium by
which the Group commun cates with shareholders
is through the arnual report and fnancal
staternents, which aim o provide shareholders with
a full understanding of the Group's activites and 1is
results. Tnis information is pubhsnad on our website
at www.ferntrading.com

Employees

The Groug's employees are fundamentat to the

overall success of the businass. The Cirectors “ulhl

ther duly to employees by entrusting oversight to

subswdary Boerds which th
Croup also sits on.

a Chief Executive of the

The directors of the subsidiary undartaxings

marage
engagement and cormmuricatiors with employees

the day to day decision making,

ard ensure thet people are treated forly and are
valued with rezpect to pay, benehtand ¢

We fLily reglise thatl our employees wish to be
informed and consulted on matters affecting their
worg and to be
ng their own areas of intarest and

onaitions,

MYOver N problem-solving

y Tne Grodp is irmy committed o
polcy Vf f‘cod commurieation at all levels and we
ar to establisn a chrrate which constantly
encourages the f‘pﬂn flow of infarrmaton and

includes monthiy team briefings

deas Presently Tis
at a focaE level and the pughication of morthly key
perfcrmance INGICalors Covering outut, cperating
costs, and heaitn a

nd safety.

safely of our emplcyzes in the

a contnual focus for the Group, gven
i3 broad operatconal busness The Direciors review
Health & Safery Reportin
ersure anoroprate Hol
zect the health and safety of Tur

tars Where there are

g at each board megting to
es ana precedures are in
place o pro
empioyess ard contrac
p—otemt\a; defciencies or issues, these are folowed
umely hass, wih the 3oard

up and olved on a

having cvers:ght of the acticns taken

The Group
of certain ooeraticnal activities to exter~al suppliers.
Where activities are outsourced the Board ensures
that they are rnanaged by reputable suppiers who

culsources acivit.es and managernen:

meet all the relevant industry and regulatery
corimitments as well as eating employees fairly
Expected stardards are documented in
contracts ard adherence to these are

rmreniicred by Board through their service

ali service
= continuaily

agreernent with Octopus Investmerts Limited.

Suppliers and customers
The Group acts . 3
and customers and zeeks to maimtan strong

fair mariner witn all supplers

business relabionships with them This s achieved
by all contracts being reactzred through & fair ang
transparent tender process whicr includes

assecang ine impact on the long-term opjectives of
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the Group. We review our payment crocessng
tmes agamst contracts every six Monihs o ensure
suppliers are pald promptly and this information for

e compary is avarlable or the www.gov.uk

The Grous ensures it acts farly and v a transparent

1anner to al cusiomers acrass all divisons and

ha

metrics and engages with the mar wagerre tteam to

understand the issues if cusiness per'crmancs does

I consigers Octopus investments L mited
be a key busiress partnar and suppuer weith
Loy for the provision of operanona.
oversignt, firancal administrano and comaozny
o

Community and environment

Tre provision and operation Of sustainabie
rfrastructure s at the centre of tre Group's
strategic guals. Through its business actvities the
G the
corrmunity. environmient ard economy Our

Croup seeks to maxe a positive cortributio

rernewable Saergy business is r‘e oing the LK rmees
its renewabio anergy targ@:_’ Cur Drivat hOSD tais

re
ve supported the MHS throughcut t
pancernic by providing weatment for ron-Covid-19

3'

ne Cond-19

NHS patents that otherwise could not have bean
carried out, and our fibre netwers will give peope
in rural Communities aceess to igh-soeed
broadband

Business conduct
As Direciors our ntenton s tC benave respcnby,
ensurng rMmanagemeant onerae The business wth

Irregrity and 10 acroragnce Wit tne b gh starcarss

ioof condact afc‘ goverrance expected of a basness
P osuchas ours Darintenticn through our business
strategy (Gutilﬂed on pages 11 to 14) 15 o operate In
sectors ard wor with other businesses that share
oLl values

Business ethics and governance
Tha Bcacd iz rezponsib.e for ensuning thar the

 actwatiss of the Group and i1 vanous businesses are
I conducted n compaance with the law ane

T oapelicable governances and regulatory regimes, ard
ir adnerence with prevailing best prectice for the

relevart industry This incudes reviewing intermal

cortiois, ensuning that there is an aperopriste
Batance ¢ skills and ex

Board, and =nsunng that ke firancial ssatemerts

perience represanted cn the

T ogve a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the
Group. Furtrer desil can be found in the staterent
of direciors responsizilities on page 29 In the year
to 20 June 2022 no areas of corcerm have beearn

flagged -n this regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

“The Board’s oolicy on em

! 4@3}@@, human rignes,

! osocal and community 1ssues, envirorment pol cy
and anti-corruntion ard oribery matters is cise 'ssed
“he Directors Repor

ton page 29 The Bcad
actively promioles a corgorate culture thar s based

e
on ethrcal values and behaviours.
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Heview of financial statements

The purpose of trus report 1 1o provide additior
explanatcry \r‘ormd 10N 0N the fnancial statemerts,
I mezasuring our performance, the inancial
measures that we Lse include thoze that have been
derved from our ~eparied resulis in order to
elimiraie factors that distort year-an-year
compansons. Tnese ae considered non-GAAR
financia. rneasares.

A reconciiation of these to the financial results can

be found in note 28 of the nctes ta the hnanoiat
statermerts

The fnanc al statements snow assets at oost, as such :
they do not reflect the future value tnat we expectto

€2

arye from mese pusinesses To that exrent

accounting performance may difer materially from 3

trie share price ang may not «eflect changes in the
full marker value of assels or bus.nesses owrad by

the Group.

A rumber of acqusiticns were mace duarng ine
year, incuding rine operatoral rezerve power sies,
a waste 1o erergy site under construction, a
construction ready wind farm n Australia and
seventeen sclar rocfiop sites urder constructon,
Shortly after the year erd, in July 2022, we soid
Darlrgton Point, a large solar site n Aastrasa,

To supoort contrued expanson, we had ocull Lp
cash reserves at year end of £256rm wic included

a large casnnilow of £597m from pacing exforrmal

r@r‘ir.an:ing i Sarergton Poict prior to sa'a

(restated) Movement
2022 2021
E£'000 £°000 £'000 %
pn:enue 711;;0 o 332 comsntnn 296r28 p- .
— A e e e e 1 e 194.;1 _5 B 1(_)“4‘“035 S go e d}/
Peofit (10ss] pefore tax - . aze04 (zz 663) e 0%
LeﬁG\P DOOF’ \I’lti‘T of prow ’WOF"”\Z,' - 360 901- o 385 512 . df: (“11 - \6 .
casn 256,415 - 2
793,169 - 699,440 13%-
‘2,219,488 1,887,842 T
Financial performance £425m) which was predominantly driven by & 847%

Overall. the Group hias reporied a orofit tefore tax of
E47.6m for the year erded 20 June 2022, wnich is g
£70.3m imoravement on the prior year (2021

E22 7rr toss restated] Overali EBITDA ircreased by
87% w0 £195m (2021 8104 restated), wnich s
onmanly due to ncreased energy gererat'cn as well

as increased energy prices

Reveniue increasaed by £287m to E712m (2021

‘Barnmngs before nterest tax, ceprediston and amorosahon

Increase In revende within cur energy division. This
growth 18 two fold, noreased energy generaton
frorn naving owned/cperated cne of our bicma
plants for the full year and a large =olar plantn
Australia reaching commussioning, and a s.gnificant
inCrease in average energy prices over the year due
10 the misrnatch between supply anc demand,
exacerbated by the ongomg conflict .n Ukraine.
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Reverue growth was strongeast In Sur energy

divisicn but we also saw a marked improvemnent in

revenue from cur rezrement villages Tris pat of
our pusiness has rebounded well frormr the
response,

(anincreasze of

elling 41 urits i tne year

52%) ard an:ncreas.ng in revenue of £7.5m 0

F20.4m 12021 £127mj

Raverde from ouf @nding 1ISIon saw a dran of
25% 1o £42m (2021 £57mi dueto a
loan oock over the year as cash was made avalacle

o grow otrer parts o

srraler gverage

of trie busines
Operatrg expensas for e year were in I'ne with

with the re

OUr expectations, ase prirmanty drve

by increases operating osts in our hbre div sicn a3
1z has excanaed Refinancng externa! debt to

SECUre IMproveds Teris over tne past two years has
contibiied 1o a decrease in interest costs of £2 5

@c
to £33.6m (2021 £26 o).

Included i tne resulis this year s a prefit of £28m
Finland

sation of E1 & of deforred consigeratio

recogrised on the sale of two wird farms n

and & rea

o solar sites soud in previous years

Financial position
Continued sinareholder rnterast and imvestment ha
seen ret assets grow 1o £2 21%m (202
estaed) in the year e~ded 30 Jun
issuad 120 shares (2021 1501}
consiceraton of £204m (2021 £2

S
comparative year nurmbers include £2,9%923m of

corsidgeration relatng 1o group restructuring
Net currert ascets of EBDESm 12021 £667m restated)
have rcreased Dy E’_4Jm reflectng the reductorm

rarcing and an ncreass IN work i Crogress

f E
witnin the fipre ard kouse cuilaing dvisions Our .oar

o< n property lendiog nas decreases by 8% to

~ eguvalerts as a7t 30 Jure 2022 were

CEL7Z2) Cashogenerated fromr

operating actvit es decreased to £42m {2021
E£342m) wirick has besn u eate

lonig-term francirg

utlized alongaide extarna.
and capral raised by rew share
issues o grow the business We have invested
supstantaly into the fiore broackand secior over
cap.tal
exgendiiue Over the next 3-5 years, increasirg our

tre past four yaars whicr wil require further

diyersificat on across sectors

Of tng cash held at year erd, E211m was neld in
boiciaries,
on and

cur energy, harme building and fbre su
where thee are 3 numoer of conctruct
infrastructure proects under way, reguiring cash o
e readily avalatle for ¢lage payme-ts due in the

nonths after yasr end.

pl

C

Goodwill, at £541m (2021, £567/m resiated),
contnuesto be as gﬁ"w art nurmber or the
bhatance sheetard a C Iti

es Acqured b

DLSie USINEssTs, fu exarapte

renewathe enargy $1es, often nave a market value
in excess of the company’s nct assets, relecting
trelr relabie future Income dreams Accounirg

converton requres thar orly idertifiatle assets are

ramed or the balance sheet 50 the accounts

cannrct record tne batarce of the additionai market
value wrich comprses the future profts that sites

detiver, The agdt
excess of the vaue of fixed assets
as sola’ paneis) is recogrised a

are expectec to onalvalue in
thamrsalves (such

gooowil,

m

Put simply, the marxet vaue of the erergy
genreration busiresses {or indeed ary ocperaioral

busiresses) reflects the value of future expected

prefits, not the cost of s mply buying tangh.e acs

such as s8i8r nanels or wird turbines We pay
arker value for tne sites we acou re, whch may

excead the vaue of 5 such as the

solar panels and

Lowhicn
esgantialy represents t~e value of ine expeced
fqtt,re rcome straams Goodmu recogrsed will

ne ofe of fre

!
i
H
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Sacior pariformance

Energy
A5 econaomic activity and globa: demard increased
througnout toe vear, 50 too did wholesale energy
Qrices
wiich resultzg in the
S our

driven by movarnents in comrnodity pricas,

overzll nore

TN yeverue

sarned acrcs enargy sites These mare:

<

factors have resulted ir 2n increase in revenug of

BA% to £533m 12021 £322m),

Correspondingly,

£266m (2027 £126m re

sigrificans INCreasa in energy revenue. Overa:
operanng costs ncreased by £230m o £327m

FY2022

Production

(MWh

Homass o ‘ ‘ ’ 1,050,038
Cardhil Gas 240,226

Reserve Sower 403,355
554,858

851,214

power sites increaced by 2192 dunng tne year to

£353m (2025 Eisim).
FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production External External
) {(MWh) Availability Avaliablilty
886.553 84.6% 8¢ %
286,026 97.9% 97 6%
141,086 94.2% 92.0%
£17.112 97.7% 96 0%
281,241 90 5% 93 1%

2 682 019

3,099, 690

(2021: £19
site cos

am restated;, partialy drven by increased
s where £120m was incurred at our
bicmass stes and £93rr at our reserve power sites,

the nrices for raw rmatenals have ncreased, on

averace, by 68% due to ar increase in the supsnly

of sales for the reserve
nevwer and Biomass otes ingreoscd by Z110mM o
£217 (2021, 107} it should be roted that the

revenue generated Ly the biomass and reserve

cosis. The comoined cos
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Healthcare

Healthcare operations contributed £46m

(2021, E£2m) 10 Group revenuss for the year
reflecting the imgact of increased revenue in
Rangefore Saies of aparvments at the retirement
vilages have rebounded well from the locxdowns
reguirec by tre Cov'd-19 pandemic response,
seling 41 units in tre year (a7 increase of 52% from
20211 and increasing revenue by £76m to £20.2m
(2021 E12 7).

Lending
Reven.e from lending decreased by £14m *o £42m
to g smaller average

22 wrich res.lied in a decreased

(2321 £57m) primarity due
loan oook for 20
revenue stream for the year The tatal lcan hook
reducec by 6% o £561m at the year erd 2021
E388m) This
shto be axm\able for opportunities across cther

>ductionin the ‘ioan book enables

sectors withi the Group ricluding acgussitions and
consiruction The make-uo of the loan book has

shifted sligntly where we Fave issued a higher
numper of smaller ioans within the residenual
sector, as well as more larger loans in the

rang e commercial secior

EBITDA for the lend ng division decreas
of £E87m from a vroft of neary £1m 'n the prior

doaloss

year. This movement reflects a provisicn of £25m in
thie [oan book agamst [oans to reserve power sites
and a prov sion aganist & healthcare ioa~ of E14m
I3 the year to Jure 2024, 239m was provided
against lears versus £24m in the prior year,

Fibre

As a relatively new dwision, all fbre bus nesses
are i the baid prase and are ctartmg 1o agd
customers 1o ther retworks. By 30 Jure 2022, the
divizcn higa ouwld passed over 120.GC0 ~omes We

anucipate re buid stage to contnue faor a furner
3- ;, <ars as we expand the fibre networks
ugn oculdng a fibre n

and leads tc

etwork 1§ casiial mensive
a phynical asset on baiance sheet, the

division also incurs large operating expenses as the
bLsresses scale their operations and develop
market presence Cverak tre dwision regorted an
EBITDA toss of £55.4m {2021 £23.5m toss;, which
150 line with excectations ard refects the

evelopmental stage of the divisior.,

> MEtwWorks out, the assets will be
st which
cannot incude future value which s exocected W be

As we build these
recogeised on the talance sheet at

generated as the assets have been internally
generated. This s different 1o the shara price where
the future value expecied to be generated rom e

ssets s included

Home building
Elvia Fomes was acquired 11 May 2027 ard has
therefore rad Urniled impact on the finaraial
petformance dunng the year The business is
forecast to deliver £78m revenue and £5.5m
EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2023 Resuss
the first 023 indicate
15 broad v perforring in line wiin expectations

quarter of 2 > the bus<ine

Funding and liquidity

Cur strategy s 1o secure lona-terr francirg at
conservative levels from mamnsireamn banks to
enhance rellms from our renewanle energy
businesses. Al year end we had £E1,044m of
external project finarcng withh £441m of
headrcom avalabe.

Te
market considers 1C have stahle charactenstios such

anables us o acquire businesses t1at the

a5 prediciable cost base, revenue sireams,
es

government imcentives or proven echnoogy and &g

such have lowes retyrms that witnouit Leverace woulid
e insJfficient for cur shareroiders |F aso alows us
Aexh:lty in Tnarcirg our businesses and managng

caxr flow We beveve that faitng o acopt thig

strategy wWOULG ~ave a megatve mpact on husiness
return ara snareholder value over the long term,
Aoproxirataly 80% of our interest gayable is fixed

and therefore we are not sgr ficanly exposed (o
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the carrent interest rate volatility. We cont.nually
review financing arrangemeants to ensdare st thay
are competitive anad optim:sed for the needs of the
Cusiness. To ensure casl 1s managed ir an agile
manner we rna:ntain a flexbie nance fac:uty
Wwhich can be drawrn down or repaid 1o mes

Luginess

mmediate needs.

Looking ahead

The Groug has repoun

ell from the effects of
as cutcerformed

(In

ar“d na
CUrreEnt econom C CUTiooK

tne Cowvid-19 pdrwc mic
expeciatons Wnilst the

s one of challarge and

Lrcertamty, we articipate

Tirina. ‘mpd”* o our resuits due to the

revenye strearms and cost base, and

ure of our activiues, with the

Coupe

ersificalion we have built up across the husinass

a
<
i)
o
@

we are positioned strongly for theze turbulent
times anead

Ne continue to pay particular attertion 1o tne hwin

chaitenges of risirg Inerest rates and surging

nftaticr — Botm in termis of len Fg and porifolic
of the

are Lkely tc remain for the

managemer: These trerds impact all areas
Group's buziness and
foreseeabie future, so we rernair disciolined i cur

nvestman: approach, contnuing ta mornitor the

situatior carefully and taking a orudert agproach to
any current and emerging risks.

We are positive asout the continded opooriunity
for growth and continue to believe that the
cusiness 15 positoned well to take advantage of

future growth cpporturities across its core business
areas. krergy, lending ang houze builamg
are well establ shea in the market and

IS rrake exce

ooeralons

continue lent progress with rotust
performances in the new firancial year In ine with
our planred sirategy, since the year end we sold a
targe salar farm in Austratia for a small profit, with

proceeds being redeployed irto new opporiunities.

e cortinues 1o moll out in kng

L

g

i
K)
§
o
3,
=l
2
(@]
=
T
2

with excectations and the Group has now passed
rriare than 150,000 homes by our fbre rnetworks
our healtncare civisior rernans
sales budget

aiready comgieted or reserved across al sites as at

early 40% cf annual s

the erd of Septernber

Arraunced vathin tho auturnn staterme st as part of
Frnance Bill, the UK Govern

237

the 20 =t will
enact @ 45% wndfall levy UElectricity Generator
"EGL on wholesale energy market
revenues in excess of E75/MWh Thsis expected to
appiy o the Group from 1 January 2023 1o 50

be publshes
azed on the intial

Lewvy' or

March 2028 The exac: tegislation wiil
i orid-Cecember 2022, out o
< has peen cerlormed
Wl We estmate the impact
apiroximately £45m

A

release an meact g
as at 30 Septemioer 2

to be a crog in valuzticn
i for tne sies affected,
P 20p decrease in the
! Decermber 2022

whach contribued 1o a

share price to 177.0p 1IN

We expect to ge

from cur estabis

crate strong coerating refurns
hed divisions for the coming years,
in addition to the anticipated outflows ‘or cur
construction phase assets The e are and
fibre divisions are well into ther bunld shaze in line
with term strategy and we anticpate
strong returns over tne next five o seven years

our long-

upor rmaturity

PS Latham
Dhrector
16 December 2022
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The directors present thelir report and the audited consolidated financial
staterments of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

For a surmmary of the Group's resu:ts, refer to the
Group inance rev'ew on page 23

Tne d‘rectors have not reco
3 dividend (2021, £51)

Tne drectors of the Cormpany who were in ofice

5 the

during the year and up 1o the date of signir
fnancial staterments were,

PS Latnzm
Ka Willey
PG Barow

T Artnur aopomted 1 duly 2022;

Refer to note 23 m the NoTes §
statements

e . T e L

Refer to the Strategic Repart on page 12.

Refer to the section 172 statement on page 21

mrmerded payrent of

Tne Group's objectives ana pohc'es on financia, risk
management Inc.uding inforrnation an the
Guldity nzks
and market nsks are set out N rnote 21 to the

exposure of the Group o credit i

friancia statements The Group’s principal risks are
set out i the strategic report on oage 18

As perritted by secton 4
Act ZGC6, the directors
informiat-on reguired (0 ge N the directors report
by Scredule 7 of the Large and Mediurm-sized
aroups tAccoun:s and Reports)
Regulations 2008 1n tre strategic repart

2 1 of the Comrpanies
nave elected 0 disclose

Corparies ang C

The 3oard recognises that a corporate cullure

oy

ased or: sound ethical values and henaviodrs is an

asset. The Group endeavours o conduct 1(s

busness with: ntegrity, in an ethscal, professional
and respons.e manrar treaung our emnployeas,
custemears, supplers and pariners with courtesy
and respect

Lo b L S RN

Apclications for emptoyment by disaoled persors
are given full and farr consideratior for atl
vacarcies, havng regars o thelr particuiar aptiiudes

and abilies. S~ould a person tecore disablec

whie ntre Group's el cymmm every effortis
made [ refair inem in e ployment, Sivirg

slter~ative Tralnng 8s necessary
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Svten hLelygn S e vt (NN
MR el s :

We fLlly real s thiat our ernployees wish o he
informed and consulted on matters affecting ther
k and to be involves in problem-solving affecting

WO
their ow

w1 areas of interest and responsibility

The Grouo is Frmiy commetted to a poticy of good

commumcat'or at all levels and we aim o estatlish
a clirrate wh'ch consianily encourages tre open
flow of iInforrmaticn and ideas. Presently this

ncludes monthly tearm briefings av a ocal leve: and
thie oublicauon of morlrly key performance
NGICAtors covenryg autput, operating costs ana

health and safety.

The Group has in place an agreement with OZtopus

Irvesiments Limted o provide services e the
Greup cover

Ing operational ocversigrt,
adrmin.s om

traucn,
aCCcouning

pary secretarial and company

“ne Board acopted s formal environmental, social
and corporate governance (PERGT) poloy on
30 September 2020 The Grouo recognises the
conduct its businese, i1 a manner that s
le to the envircnme

need 1o

respoNsin ri. wherever possible.

As a tow energy user, the Company has elected not
Lsage

Fern Trading Limited is the only Comrpary in the

to disclose cata on its energy and carbon
Group tnat meets the reporting criteria and
therefore no intormation is provided for the Group
as a whale

The Groug's has an Arti-Bribery Polcy which
ntroduced robust procedures to ensure full
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 ard 1o énsure
that the highest standards of professional ethic
conduct are maintained.

In accordance with the recomimenaatons of The
the Board has
N place to encourage

=)

Corporate Governance Coce,
cons dered the arrangements

staff of tne Group or manager ¢f the Group to raise

concerns, in confidence, witn n ke organisation
about possible improprieties in matwers of finarizial

«epurling or other matters 1tis satished that adegLate
arrangerments are in place to allow a~ independenrt
nvestigation, and foilow-cn action where necessary,

to taxe place waithin the crgarisation,

We are commitied to acting ethicaly anc with
irtegrity i all our Dusiness dealngs and
relationships ard to imolementing anc enforcing
aeffective systers and contrels 1o ensure modern
slavery 1s not taking place anywhere im our own
businass or in any of our supply chams, consistent
with our obagarions under the Modern Slavery Act
015 We expect the same h:igh s
of odr contrach
partne s par:
¥pect our Jurplwﬂrg to comgly with tre Modern
Slavery Act 2015

[

standaras from zll
rs, suppliers and other business

of our CCF“U-:ICU"\Q OroCesses, we

ﬂ)

Trie directors aqe responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the firancial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulat or.

Zompany aw reguires the directors ‘o prepare

il year Under
ne Group anc

Cormpany financial statements in accordancs with

United Kingdom Gererally Accepied Accounting

ng Standards

financ-al staterrents for each finarc

that law the directors have prepared &

Fractice (iUnited Kingoor Accourt
comprising FRS 102 "The Financal Regorting
Standard applcatle in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” and applicable faw). Urder company law
the directors must not approve the fingncial
tatements urless thay are satisfied that they give a
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true and faic view of the state of affars of the Group
Toany @nd of the prom or logs of the Croup

rmpary for that peried. In prepaning the
nancial statements, the directors are reguired (o

uritng policies and then app.y

» state whether applicable Un ted Kingdorr
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 rave
beer followed, suk,ect to any material depariires

disc.cies and explained in the francial
2its

nts ana account ng estimates that
and prudent, ang

« prepare the financal staterrents on the gong
concern basis uness i nappropnate to
presume trat the Group and Cormrpany wil

ConTnue N busness

The dractors are alse resoonsimle for safequsrdirg
the assets of the Group and Company and nence
for takirg reasonabie steps for the preventon ar
h

e
detectic™ of fraud and other irregularities

Tre arectors are resoo-iibie for <genng adeguate
accourting records that are sufficient to show anda
explain the Grouo and Cormnany's transactors and
disc.ose with reasorable accuracy at any tme the
friancial position of the Group and Corrpany and
enable them to ensare that trhe fnancial staternenis

compy with e Companies Act 2006,

The drectors are ~esponsibie for the rma nte~ance
and imtegrty of tne Cormpany's weisite cegislatior
ir the United Kingdom governing the oreparancn

and disseminar’o

feomm _A‘btauOF o Gther UFI SGICiome,

nof Francial statemerts may difer

As permitted oy the Articles of Association, the

! directors have the benet of an mdemmty wirichiis
a gualfying third-carty incermrity pravision as
defined oy section 234 of the Companias Act 2006
Fhe indemanity was in force throughout the (ast

i fanancial year and is corrently in force

r of winch e Grougo and

L— O

C ormpany’s auditors are unawars, and

o they nave taken al ine steps that they ought
Yo have taken a3 a c‘kec

Or 1N order W make
therrselves aware of any raievant audi
nformation and to establish that the Group and

Company's auditors are aware of that mformat.on

This corfirmancn s given and shculd be interpreiea

in accordance with the provisions of section 428 of

the Comparias Act 2006,

Ernzt & Young LLF hawving peer appointed in 2022
have indizcaied thelr wilingrniess to be reaoporied

for anotre term ard wll ne proposed for re-

apoontment in accordarce witn secucn 485 of the

Companies Act 2006

The Directors’ recort was approved by the Board of
Directors on 16 Becernber 2022 ana signed on its
benalf by.

PS Latham
_irecier

VL6 December 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

rits of Ferr
moaﬂy') and iz
subsidiaries (the 'Group’) for the year ended 30

sne 2022 which comprise (e Groun Stafemen

ted the financia. s
Traging Liruted {the Farent Co

=

of
Comprehensive Income, the Grodp and Parent
Company 3alance Sheet, the Group Staternent of
Casn MNows, the Group and Parenl Staiement of
Cranges in Equity and the related nowes 1to 2%,
including a surnmary of signficart accounting
polce: The hinancial reporting framewerk that has
heen applied in their preparaticn s apglicable law
and United Kimgdom Accountng Standards
ncludimg FRS 162 "The
e n the UK and Republic of
Iretznd’ {Lited Kngdom Cenerally Accepted

Accounting Practice).

Fimancial Reporting
Standard applics

In cur opnicn, the financial statements,

¢ give a rue and farr view of the Group's and of ¢
Farent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and
of tne Croup’s proft for the year ther ended;

sen properly precared in accordance with
Urnited Kingcom Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractice, and

« MEve DeSn presarec In accordarce with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2005

Basis for opinion

our audit in accorgance with

Internat.onal Standards on Audung (UK (1SAs [UK)

and applicable law Our respensibilities under those

standards are further descrbed in the Auditor's

responsibilities for the audt of the financial

We conducted

statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the
e:hical requirements that are reevant ¢ our aud: of
the finarcial staterments in the UK, ncwding the
FRC's =thical Standard, and we have fulfilled cur
ofher ethical responsicitties In accordance with
these reguirements.

A ‘K\h

We believe that the auait evidence we have
obtained is suffcient ard appreprate o provide &
bass for our op‘:rwsom

Conclusions relating to golng concern

Ir adud.iing the fnarcial statements, we have
concluded that the direciors’ use of the going
concern bass of accounting In the o

the Anancia

regaration of
Letatements s aporoornate,

Bazsed on the work we have performed, we have
notdentifed any matenal uncertantes r

events or conaitions that, irdivedually or <

elating to
ollezively,
may ¢ast s grafcant doust on the Croup and Farent
Company's ahility 1o continue as a gor dg concern
for a pencd of twelve rnonths from when the

financiat staterrents are autharnised for 1ssue.

Qur responsin nd the responsbilives of
trie drectors with respect 1o going cencern

are described in the s eleva
report. However, because not ali future evenis or
condtions can be precicteq, this

rtsectons of this

statement is not a
guarantee as to tre Group's abis ty to continue as a
goirg concern

Other information

The ather irfarmation comprizes the information
ncluded in the annual report, other than the
financial staterrents and our auditor's regort
trereon Tre directors are responsiole for the other

nformation contained within the anrual report.
ements doas rot

cover the other informaton and, except 1© the
otrierw se explcilyy siated in this repor:, we

Cur ooinio~ or the financial stat

extent o
do not express any form of assurance conclusion
trerson.

Our respensibility 15 to read the other information
and, im doing so, consider wrether the other
irforrmation s materially neonsistent with the
obtained in

finanical staterments or our krowiedygs




3 | COVERNANCE

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the zudit or otharwise appearsto be |« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
materiaily m.sstate. [f we dentify such matenal sgecified by law are not mad»:—:; o
incorsistenc2s or apoarent material misstaements,

: ] « we have not recaves ait the informaton and
wWe are requsred o determine whether this g ves rise . . .

- exparatiors we requ:we for cur audit
D a material rmusstatement in the finanzial

sratermenits themselves If, pazed on tme work we ﬁﬁ;&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁé iz of direciors
e

have performed, we corclude tnat there is a

As expizinad rmore fully in the Directors
responsibilities siatement set ou o~ pages 29 and
30 the Directors sre fpepomwl@ or the preparation
We have nothing to report in this regard. Poof the financial statermenis and for being sanshed

Potnat they gve a trae ard fair view, and for such
Cpinions on other maltters prescribed | jriomal control as the Direciars determing is

materal risstatermart of the other irfaormauan, we
are required to report tratf fact.

2
s £ i L
by the Companies Act 2008 ! onecessary 1o erable the oresarator of financia
Ir our opinion, based on Tre wor< yrderazen tosiatermerts thal zre free from matenai
the course of the audit ! omisstateient, whether cue to fraud or error,

« the nformation gves in tre Srategc report and [N preparng the francial staements. the Direciors

the irectors report for the financial year “of i areresponsible for assecsng the Grows and e
which the firancial staternerts are prepared s P Parent Cornpany's ablity 1o continge 25 a Geng
consisiert with the fina-cial statemenis; and I concern, dsclosing, as appicasle, matiers related

. 0 qQoing concern and using the going concerm
» the Strateqic report and Directors’ report have 9oing 9oy
basis of accourt ng unless the Sirectors enher

roprepared in accordance with agolicable

fegal requirerren

ntend to kguiga the Group or the Parent

Compary of to cease ogerations, or have ro
reavstic alierratve but to do so

Matters on which we are required io
sporl by exception : e el s
B ¥ e  Buditor’s responsibilities for the audit

) ot of 1 ~owledoe & dnderstanding ¢ 3 o H
In the >.C|’|t of tra k owledae and dnderstand ng of o t%‘?@ &ﬁ&ﬁﬁ:i&{ stntermanis

the Group and tne =arert Company and its -

-

environmen: chiamed in the course cof the audit,
‘ zhouatw ancia. statements as a whale
wo have not icerghed material messiatemens in

are free from matena’ misstaterment, whether gue

tne Strategic report or Directors’ roport. . )

Do frauc or error and [ issue an audior's repor
We have rnothing 1o reportin respect of the i that ncludes our opin on Reascrable assurarce is
following mattere in relation to which the P s rugh level of assurance, but 15 not a guarantee that

Cormmparues ACU Z006 regurres Us 10 report 1o yoL  f an audit conducted in gocordance with 15As (LK)
5

N Gur colmion. will aways detect g Mmater al misstatement when

m fraud or errer

ex sts Misztaterr fCm
ravdaally oric the

ents can anse f

= adecuale alToUNUC g records rave not been kept
-

-
rreturns adeguate for our aucit nave not been 2 are corgcered matenal

aggregate, he;,- COLIG reasomamy neE expected O

receved from ranches not visiied by us; or

i~fluence the econormic geaisions of Lsars taken on

fre bas:s of these hirancsl statemenis
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capabla of
detecting irragularities, including
frawud

Irreguiarities, ircludirg fraud, are instarces of non-
wth laws and reguialons. We design

oiives, outlired

cormpliance
procedures iniire with our responsio
agove, to dowor rregular wes, including fraud The
risk of not detectng a raterial misstaternent dag

fraud is higher than the ris< of not detecting one

resuitirg from error as fraud may nvolve del berate
concea!ment by, for examgie fargery or inienticnal
misrepreseniations, or throwgh colusicn. The
extert to wrch our procedures are canable of
detecting irregulantes, including fraud s detaiied
sponsiplety for the
s will both
antty ard

helow Fowever the onirmary re
prevenuon and cetechior of fraug rest
those charged with governarce of the

managemert
Cur approach was as follows

+ We oblained an understand ng of the legal and
requlatory framewaorks that are applicable to the
Group and determined that the most significant
are those thai rejate to reporting framework (FRS

2 and the Comparies Ac: 2008)

» We ynderstood how Fern Trading Limited is
compiying with those frarnewaorks by making
enquinies of managemeart, those charged with
governance and those respons’ble for legal
and comptarce precedures 35 10 any fraud -izk
framework within the entity, including whether
a formal fraud risk assessment s completed We

corrcborated cur encunes througn reviaw of the

following docurmentation or performance of tre
follewing procedures

» obtaining an urderstanding of entity-leve!

contros ard considering the irfiuence of the

contro. ernvirgnrient,

« oblanng an understanding of policies and
proce

witn laws and reguations, inc

cures In place regardirg complance
wud ng how
cerrpliance with such policies 1s monitored
ang enforced, obtairrg an undarstandirg of
manzgeent's process for igentify ng anc
responding to fraud ris<s, including prograrrs
s established to address

islsRgelaitell risks

icentifies, or ctherwise r and
dete

monitors those programs

prevent, det
ct fraud, and how senior rnanagemeﬂ‘:

and controls;

ey of coard meeting rminutes in the pericd
o cate of sigrning.

We gssessed the susceptiblity of the Group's
finarcial statements to meateria. msstatement,
nciucing now frau
CISCUSSION within tne

frauc rmight occur by holding 2

audi ream which included:

o icendfication of rela rties,

ted pa
the
nherent
eevart assertions at the aign:ficant

busiress,
[ assessng the

« Undersiandirg the Group's
cortrol ervircnment and
risk for
account evel including discussions with
mManagernaent 1o gain an undersianding cf
those areas of the financial siatements which
WEIC 5L

sceptible 10 fraud, as icentihed by

management; and

« copsidered the controls that the Group hias
astablished 1o address risks identfied by

tne eniity or that otherwise seek o prevent,
ing g
erstanding of the entity level controls ana

polices that the Group applies

deer or detect fraud inciuding ga ring an

rd

Basen on this understand ng we detgned our
aud: procegures to dent fy non-comrplance

with such laws and regulatons Our procedures
invoved tesung of journas entries through

journal analytics wools, with focus on manual

CERNR RS
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Journals, large or unusuat transactions, or journals

meeting our defined rigk criteria based on our
understanding of the business: tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financiat
statements; and inspecting carrespondence,
if any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

e T LY 22 d
3

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as & body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audut
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁmﬁr&% fL_L.P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutary
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit end loss account for the year ended 30 June 2022

B AT e e BRI %k YRS b S ST S s T M RRIN R VY v pamaErrenm e

Turnover 1

e xR

Cost

Gross profit

Adrmiristrative expenses

Operating profit/{loss) 2
Otrer income 1
Income frar other fixed asser investments

Share of cperating profit in joint venture

Frofit on disposal of subsicianes and joint ventore &

Other mmerest racewvab o and sanilar incorne &) 130
Irirer cle and sirtilar charges 5 {33,554}

Profit/{loss) before taxation

lax or preft/ioss) 7

Profltl(loss) fot; the ﬁnanéial year )

Attributable to Fern

Minority interest

Mote

RTINS

2022
E£'000

{restated)
2021

£000

711,830

.. 1a10883)

300,947

o fess2sy

42,696
3,550
5,249

29,533

47,604
(16,294}

317,932
(6,622}
31,310

425300
(221,277)
204025
(231,844]
C e
5454
449
1755
23,568
957
(16,067)
(22663
(8,349)
(3ot

(27,005
{(4.007)

(31012}

Al resulis relate w© conunaing activines, Note 26 details the prior penod acjustments.

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2021

EQOO

B ERRY RS PR

ﬁofitl(loss) for the financial year

Other comprehensive income

Moverments in casn flow hedyges

Foregn excharge gain/lloss) on retranslation of subsidarnes

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to
» Owners of the parent
« Non-controlling intg{ests )

134,478

‘127,856

les22) .

R Tt

1z

44983
(333)

44650
13,638

17645
(4,007)

12638
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Group balance sheest a5 at 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
MNote £000 £000
leedassetsh ' A SN [T
Irtangibte 3559t 3 557,708 576739
Tangible assets 9 1,893,430 1581682
IFvestments 10 35,452 11,000
""" 2486590 2165421
Currentassets o I
STGChRS iz 184,479 94,711
Debtors fncluding £138m (2027 FIE Tm) 13 623,161 598,002
Gue aTter more than one year!
Cacsh at vank and i~ hand 11 256, 415 172 478
S S 1064,055 ees191
Creditors amounts falhng due wnthln one year N 7 14 (256 152) 202 059) _

Net current assets 807 903

;faiaiassets less curf;nrtrlriahili'tias 3 29M4»493 - 283255?
Creditors: amounts fallmg due after more than one year 15 o (992 425) ) (903339)
Provisions for llablhtles Rt (82 620) w (4L 3/'2}-
Netassets 2,219,448 1387842
Capitat and reserves

Callee up srare cagita. 15 161,662 149,676
Shagre premidrm account 364,882 173,118
Merger resone 1,635,569 1440757
Cask flow Andge reserve 63,006 (14,979
Profit and loss accourt (2,770} 136,049
Total shareholders funds 2,222,349 l 894 121

N "OHUUII rg N Pract, (Z 902) 3721
Capltal employed 77777777777777777777777777 - 2 219 448 - 188/842

Note 26 details the pr.or period adjusiments,

These consclidates financia statements o0 pages 35 1o 92 were a
16 Decerber 20227 amg are saned on their pefall by

PS Latham

- to
uirezior

Regiztered rumber 12£016348

proved by the Board of d rectors on
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™o

Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
N ) ) ETOOO £0co
lee‘;;ss;ts» et nt s e et e e i s 5 s v R
Invesiments 10 2 539 978 ? 116, 366
Currentassets -
Debtors i3 39,888 50.783
Cashioat bark and in hand 11 6 422 1523
- o N - 46310 7 51,905
Credltors amounts falllng due wuthm one year S 14 S (449) o (2?9;;{‘
Net current assets " asse mom
To;;i:;sets less current lnab:lmes e »2‘585 839 o 2,145 348
Net assets o 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves
Caled up share capital i3 161,662 149,676
Share prern’urn account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Proft i d loss accourt 72,838 3L4GQ
Totalshareho!ders funds S é,585,839m S 2 14J 348 ‘

The Corngany has elected o take the exﬂfnptaon under seciicn 408 of the Compares Act 2006 not 1o
present tre Company profit and loss yunt. The profit for the finarcial penod deatt with ir the financiat
staternents of the Company was E.236 ”I‘D (2021 loss of £157,504 000,

These firancial staternents ar pages 35 to 92 were aporoved oy the Board of directors on 26 Decermber 2022
and are signed on their behal® by

PS Latham
Director
Reg:stered nurmber 12601656




sl
[}

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Group siatemant of changes in eguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022 |

LanSing on - - - - 1851 183 {1.842) {17)
2R nglicon

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Kon- Capital !

share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed !

capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated) ;

{r d} {restated) funds :

{restated)

£000 E'000 E£Q00 Q00 £'000 £000 :

138435 -~ 1535,569 16%,337) 41,185 1668982 8,570 1678552

oror perod 3875 23,823 17703 - 17703 5
adjusiments {iroce 26) - - - . R A . 177 |
{

H

138435 - 1635565 (59,962} (27 356) 1.686.685 9570 1696258 !

- - - - {27.005) {2F005) 14,007) (31,012} §

fcach figw - - - 44,983 - 44,983 - 44583 1

1w dges leststed, |
Foretg~ exchange gan
- - - 1323) (323 - (333 !

- - - 44983 [(2£2) 44650 - 44 650

T’;va\rr_;;rnprens.g-rsa,« = o ST S
X e - - - 42987 [27,328; 17645 4,007 138328 :
resiated) !
Mor-contratirg

sthsaten o rg :
thsaron oF roe _ - (195.312) - 195,312 - - - !

rCaRr e

. . . . . ‘
11685 173,118 - - - 184,803 - 184,803 !

[444] - - - 16,399) (6,843} - (6,843)

149,676 173118 1440,257 {14,979 136.04% 188421 3721 1887842

2021 ‘restate

Balance as at

1 July 2021 (restated)
Profit for the
financial year

149,676 173,118 1884,121

1,440,257 (14,979)

136,049

3,721 1,887.842 j
{6,622) 31,310

- - - - 37.932 37,932
Changes mrrlarket o o

value of cash flows - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,988
hedges

Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - — - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561 i
of subsidiaries :

]
i
1
i
|
i
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Calied up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Totak Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital atcount reserve account holders' interest
funds
£000 E£'000 E'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Other )
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
the year
Total camprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,473 (6,622) 127,858
the year
Utilisation of merger ] _ _ 195,312 - (195,312) - - -
reserve
Sharesissuedduring §ff 11986 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Batance as at
30 June 2022 - E 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770} 2,222,349 {2,901} 2,219,448
Note 26 details the prior peried adiustments
Company statament of changes in equity for the yesr ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds.
£'000 £'000 E£Q00 _E000 E£'000
Balance at incorporation - - - - -
Loss for the financial year - - - (157.504) {157,504)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312} 195,312 -
Total comprehensive income - - {195,312¢ 37808 157,504
Shares issued dunng the year 150120 173118 1986457 - 2.509.695
Shares cancelled during the year (444 - - {5,359) 6,843)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145,248
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312} -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 205,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
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tGaroup statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

Moto
Cash flows from operatmg actlwties
Profie/lloss] for tre financiat year attributable (o the owrners of the parent
Adjustments for:
Tax on profyiloss) 7

interest r

ccevable and sircilar mcome 6
Irterest payat-2 and other sirilar charges &
Proft or disposal of subsidianics and Girt venture 8
Incorme fromoint veniurn

Incorne from fixed assel iInvestrrents

Armarmsaton and imparment of intangicle fixed assets

Depreciation of 1angioie Fued Jaseis 3
Morn-casn staff oosts

Moverniente orn desvatives and foregn exclhange

Ircrease n stock

{increasel/decreass in dabtcs

Ircregsel/idecreaseal in credrors

Mon controling interess 19

Tax rece

Net cash generated from o eratin actlwtles

Cash flows from mvestmg actlvmes

FlLrcrase of subsicdiary unaertakirgs inet of cash acgired)
Saln of sibsidiany undetanrgs and jont vertase
Purchaze of targible assels

Furchase of mtargble assets

Furcrase of nrsted mvestments

b

Sale of urasted wvesimarts

e

a2}

Interest recen

Imcarme frore oint ventare

Net cash used in investing actwmes
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Srancing

Irterest gaid

Proceeds from snare issue ]

Ca”ce flon of s“ res 8

Net cash generated from ﬁnanc:ng act:vntles
Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equwalents

Casn and cash equivalents a0 1ne beginning of tre year il

Fxchange ga s on casn and Cash eguralents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1

(restated)
2022 2021
_E000 o0
37,932 (27.005)
16,294 5,349
(130) 957
33,554 36,068
(29,532) (26,568)
- (1755
(5.249) (449;
45,762 37704
101,802 84697
3,040 8,875
(18,044) (19.788)
(19,829) (5701
31,022 245374
(173,956) £,871
(6.622) (4.007)
25,853 @751
aL897  3a017
(52,377) (221,987
101,778 34503
(322,446) (110457)
(7.222) (575
{124,203) (29.617)
105,000 20133
130 597
- 1077
@99340) (306226
201,719 -
{32,319) (35,552
(32,013) (212 676)
203,750 184,359
- 16,599)
341137 70,268)
83,694 (34577
172,478 206,538
R
256,415 = 172478

Note 26 deta s the prior per.cd adjusirments,
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Statement of accounting policies

ﬁ@mg&aﬁy information

Fern Trading Limited (tre Carmpany’] 1s a private company frnited by snares and incorgorated on 14 May
02C "reco rn::aﬂy is corriciled in Englans, the United Kingdorn and reg.stered under cc-r*many nurnber

12601636 he address of the registered office 1 at 6tk Floor, 33 Holborn, Longon, England, ECIN 2HT

Statement of compliance

The CGrous ard indivdaal franca. statements of Fern Trading L'mited have been prepared n compiance
witn Urted Kingdaom Af:ccur:tirg Standards, nciuding Ninancal Neporung Sandard 162, Thie Financizl
Reportng Standard agplicable in the Unitad Kingoor and the Republic of reland TFRS 1027 end the
Comparies Act 20u6.

Basis of preparation of financia! statements

Tne financ.al statements have teen prepared on a going concer basis, under the historical cost conventian,
as mcaified oy the recogrition of certan financial asses and liab'ltas measured a1 far value, 37d ir
accordance with t1e Compan.es Act 2006 ard spplicat standargs in the United Kingdom The
orincipal accountng policies, wrics hiave bean apoled con ftentiy throughout tne year, are set out below

The consclidated inancial statermerts include the results of all subsidiaries cwred by Fern ™~ rading Lirmited
3s ligted in note 75 of the annual financial statements Certain cormpanies of these subsidiaries, which are
sted in note 29, have aker the exemotior from ar audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 perrritted by
section 4794 of Comparues Act 2006 In order 1© a.0w these tupnsciaries (0 take the audit exempt.on, the
parent company has given a statLiory guarantee, r lre with section 479C of Companres Act 2006, of all
the outstanding net lisbilities as at 30 Jure 2022

Golng conoern

Tne Groun's and the Compary's business activities, together with t=e Sactors lkely to affect s future
development, p rformance ard position are set out tne Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14, The firanciat
oostion of tne Group, its cash flows, Tguidity positor and borrowng faciities are descrnibed in the financiat
review on gages 23 to 27 The prncipai risks of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 19

The Directors perform an annuat gol rg concern review that considers the Grouo's ability 1o meet its
finarcial obligatiors as they fail due, fo
statements nave been signed

a penod of at least twelve months afier the date that the financiat

Due to the chalerging market condtions management have performed an assessrant to determine
wrietner there are any material unzertaint es zrising that could cast significant doubt on the aoiity of the
Group ta confinue as a gong concern. No significant issues have been noted and as a consequence, the

directors beleve hat the Group is wetl placed to manage its business nsks successfully despite the current

uncertzin ecoromic outicak

2 Shmadi e
e
e Bl LR iy
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In reaching this conclusion the Directors nave reviewed the financial impact of the urcertairty on t
Group's ba.ance sheet, profit and (oss and cash fiows with specific consicaration given 10 the folowng.
A reverse stress test was performed on the base case forecast 1o ascertain what sgenanos would result 'n

ns<s to the Groups quidity position The test showed even ir an unlikely scerarno of a agnificant reducton

of revenuye of 46%. the Group is able to sustain its current operational coots and meet ad hablities as they fall
due for at leact & year from the gate of signing these firancial statements when utilising the avalable

facilities within the Group

Tre Group has a nurber of finarcing facilities trat contain covenants requirng the Groun 1o maintalr
specified dnancial ratos and comply with certain other inarcial covenants These fimancial covenarits are

tested at least quarterly, and, at the date of this repo he Group is 1in complance with all its finarcial
covenanrts Stress tests on reasgratly plausibie scenanos such as a s gnificant reduction in EBITDA of 845
over time have peen used to assess the covenant requirernents for the at least the next hwelve montts ard

al! covenarts have been forecast 1o pe met even under the stress test scenario, in the going cercer panod

At 30 Jurne 2022, the Group had avasatie cash of £250m ang headroom avaliabie of £441r inciuding a
revowing credit facility of £210m Debt of E88m 5 dae to mature in less than one year, with the remramnder
of ES56m pavable in miore than one

-
(T.
{0
B
o
[P]
L‘)

oups faclit es, repayiment dates and u-drawn amounis are

set oul ir Note 16 Loans and Borrowings.

Key accourting judgement ad est.mates have been mads
economic cutiook Key estimates includs oan recoveragility valuat o7 o work i progress,

ph consideragton given to the carrert

decomrrissioning srovisiors, impairreent of goodwil ard nvestments, puginess comoiraucrs and hedge
accountng. Details are set out on pages 50 tc 5

Based on the above assessment of current econom e corditons end the impact on tne Group's financiat

position, liquidity ard financal covenants, the cirectors nave concuuded that the Grous and Comrpany has
adeguate resources 1o contnue in cperational existence for the next 12 mont~s, Thus, they contmue to

20000 the gong concen basis of accountng n pregpanrg the annual Tnancal staterments
Exermptions for quslifyving entitios under FRS 302
FRS 102 allows a gqualifying entiy certaim disciosure exemphions, sUDJECt to cartain conditiors, which rave

beern complied wih, ncluding notification of, and no cbiection 1o, the use O exemptions by tre Company's
sharehoclders

The Company has taken zcvantage of the following exempiions’

rom preparing a statement of cash flows. onthe Bassthat itis a the conzoldaed

staternent Gf cash ‘lows, inciudea in these fina~c at staternents. | w s Cash fiows,

i from the Anancal instrurrent disclosures, requaired under FRS 152 paragraphs 11 75 to 10484 and
caragrashs L2 26 w0 12 29, a5 1ne nformaton s provigea in ine conscldated Francal st

distiosares;

AL from disclosing the Corrpany Key management nersornel nompensahon, as requred oy rR5 202
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Basis of consolidation

The corsold

red Anancisl staterments include the results of Fern Trading Limnited ard ali itz subsidiary

undertakings rmade up to the same accounting date All irtra-group ba.ances, trarsactions, income and

expenses are alimnaed n full on consolidation. The resuits of subsidiary undertakirgs acquired or disposed

of duriﬂg tre penod are included or excluded fram the income staterrent fram the effeciive date of
guisicn or disposal

Alt undertakings over which the Group exarcises control, being the power to govern tre firancial and
operating pohcies so as to obain neneits from ther activities, are conzolidated as subzidiary uﬂdertaxmgs
Where a subsidiary nas different accounting pol*cle (o the Group, adjustments are made o tho

sLbsidary financial statements to apoly the Group's accounting policies when greparing the consolidated
finarcial statements

Ary subsidaary undertakirgs ar assecigtes soid or acquired durng the vear are included up to, or from, the
dates of charge of control or change of s grificant influence respeciively

Where the Groun has written a put opt'on cver shares heid by @ non-controiling interest, tne Group
derecogmses tae non-contrelling imterest and instead recognised contingent deferred cansideraton labil Ty
witnin other payables for tne estimated amount ikely 1o be pa'd to the non-controlling interest on exercise

of those opticns. Tre residual amount, regresenting the difference between any consideratior paid/payable
and the non-contreiling interest’s sare of net aisets, 15 recognised as gooowin Movements in the

estimared abiity after nitial recogniticn are recogrised as gqoodwili.

Forsion currenay

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Groug finarcia. staterments are prezsented in pound sterng and roundea to thousands.

The Comipany's functional and presentstion currency is powng stering and rounded to thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transacuons are trarslated into the funchional currency Laing the spot exchange rates a
the dates of the transactions. At eacn period end foreign currency monetary items are translatec using the
closirg rate. Non-rmonetary items measured at historical cost are trarslated using the exchange rate st the
date of the transaction and non-rmonetary ters measdred at ‘air value are measured using the exchange
rate when farr value was determined. Foreign exchange gans ana lesses resulting from the settement of
transactions ard frem the translation st period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Lsbilities
denominated i foreign currencies are recogrised in e profit and (oss account.

All forewgr excnange gamns and losses are presented in the profit and loss account within ‘admiristrative
expenses’

ili. Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translaied into oounds sterling at the average exchange rates

for the year The assets and labilities of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair vaiue adjusiments

ar'sing ar acalLzion, are translated at the excnange rates ruting at the year-end. Exchange adjustments

arsing fram the retranslation of opering net investments ard from the ranslation of the profits or losses
verage raes are recognised In Other comprenensive income’ and allocated to non-controling interest

Q:

L‘.n

ta
S appr opriate,
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Turnover
Tre Group cperates a nuriber of classes of business, Revende is gerved by the foiowina,
= Energy
Turmicver from the cale of eectricity generated by solar farms, wind generatng assets, reserve power
¥ d Y
p.ants and oiomass and andfill sites s recognised on an accruals basis in the per oo in which itis
generated. Revenue from long-terrm governmen: backed offtaxe agreements, such as the Renewable

Chigation Certfication ("ROCT) screme are accrued ir e pericd nwh'ch it relates 1o Turnover from the

sses s recognised on physical dispatch

Turnover ‘s recogrised when tne significant nsks and rewards of ownarship of retrement propertes have

onl, the armoLnt of reven

probable that the econormuc berefts associated with the ransaction wil flow L2 the entity Turnover
id

> car be recogrised reuaoly, and it s

iz recognised st the fair vaiLe of the consideration received ror heathzare servicos provided i1 the norma!

COUrse of busncss, and s shown < et of VAT Turrover < recognised based o0 the cate tre service

5

provided,

« Lending
Turnover represents arrangenern fees and nterest on wans provded (o customers, nat of any vawe
added tax Loan interast is recognsed on an aocraal basis -0 hine with contracaa: terms of the loan
agreement Arrangerment fees are spresd cver ne life of the loan to which thay relate.

« Fibre

Turncver s recognisec at the far value of the consideration receved for intermet connectyity and related
3

arva
IT serv ces proviged v the nommeal course of bu 3, and 1s shown ret of VAT Turmover 1s recogrized

based on the ¢ate tre service s proviced

« House bulding

Turniover is recogn.sed on legatl compietor of the saie of proparty, land and commmercial spaces Turnover

from Pousing asscciation contracts is recogrized by reference (o the valde of work completed as a
prosortuon of the total cortract value
Emploves banefiis
Tre Group provides a
arranger-erits and defines contnibution pension oians,

L Short-term benefits

Shors term berefits including holiday pay ard other sirlar non-moretary benefits, are recognised as ar

exgense in e penod in wh o2 the service s rece ved,

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defned contribution par s a pension plar u-der wa'c the Grouo pays fxed cortnbunors inte a

separate ety Unce the contnbotions hiave beer paia the Group has ~¢ further paym™ment coiigatinns.
Yy are

The coruioutons ars racGgriced as ar expense waen the cue Amgouants Not pad are shown in
~ I

2

the p.an are held separaiey from the Group in independently

accruals in the balance sheel The assefs 2

adrmrustered “Urds.
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iii. Share-based payments
Casr-cettled share-hased payrments are measured at far value ar the balance sheet date The Group
ccount the esurrated

recogn ses a liability at tne balance sheet date based on these far values, takin
number of urnits that will actually vest and the current proportion of the vestin

lﬂu
5
m
[

Cnanges in tre vaiue of this labiity are recogrised in the ncome staiement.

The Group has no eguity-settled arrangements

Finance cosis
Finance costs are chargad 1o the profit ard loss accourt over the erm of tre debt using tre effective
Sue ot are

interest mathod 5o tnat the amount charged § at a constant rate on the Carrying amount
sed as @ reduction n the proceeds of the asscniatea capiat Instrument and released o e
oft and loss acco

ms‘u’alty recogn

Gunt over the term of the deb

Current and deferred tay
Tax is recognised in the stalemrent of Income ang retained earmings, except trat a change attibutable 0 an
E g

em of Income and expense recogrised as cther comprehiensive income or o ar ité reccansed direcily
uty is also recognized in otner comprehensive incorme or directly -n equity respectively

The current income ax charge s ca.culatea on the basis of tax rates ard taws that have been eraced or
sLbstantively enacted by the kalance sheet date ir the countries where the Company operates and
gererates incs

Deferred palances are recognised in respect of a'l timing differences that nave ongratec cui not reversed
oy tne Balarice sheet date, except that:

The recognition of deferred tax assets i lirnited to the extent that it 15 probatle that they wiii be recovered
against the reversal of defer-ed tax liabiiities or other future taxabie profits, and

« Any deferrea tax balances are reversed If and when aill congitions for retaining associated tax allowances
have peen mer,

Deerred tax balances are rot recogrised in respect of perrmanent differences except in respect of business
combinations, when de‘erred tax is recogrised on the differences between the far va ues of assets acquired
and the future tax deductons avaliaole for thern and e differernices between the fair vaiues of laoilities
acguired and the amount that wili be assessed for tax Deferras tax s determined using tax rates and laws

that have been enacted or suostantively enacied by the balance sheet dats,

Business combinations and goodaill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method

The cost of a business comination 1s the fair vaiue of the cons.deration given, liabutes incurred or
assumed and the equity instrumerts issued plus the costs directly atiributable to the pusiness cormbination.
Where control is achieved in stages the < the considaration at the date of each tranisacuon

On accu'sition of a busness, farr values are attnbuted to the ident9abie assets, Labiities and contngent
labivties unless the fair value carnot be measured retaly, in which case the value is mcorporated as
goodwil. Where the farr value of contingert lao-lites canrat be refiasly measured they ara disclosad
onthe same Basis as other cortirgert labilities.
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f\

Goodw it recogn

=

ed represents the excess of tme fair value and directly atributable costs of the purchase
consideration ovar the fair values 1o the Grous's interest i1 the :dentfabie net assets, uahiiities and
coningent liabrtes acquired

On acguisition. goodwill is allocated te cash-generating units (CGU'S) that are exoected o benefit frorm
ne cormo nalan

Goodwll is amartised over its expacted useful nfe which is dewermned based on the estimated hifespan of
th

e assets acquired. Where the Group 1s unable to make a reliable estimate of useful lfe, gocdwil s
amortsed over g pericd not excesdng ten years. Goodwllis rev

ved and assessed far impairment
£

irdicaters on an annual basis and any impairmeant is cnarged fo the proft ana loss,

Tangible fixed assets

Taraiwe qxaed assets are stated at cost less degreciator Depreciauon i provided at rates calculated to write
off tne cost of fixed assets, @8t therr estimated residual value, over their expectas useful lives, Jepreciation
commeancas from the date an asset 1s brought into service Land and assets ir the course of construction

are not depreciated. Tre estimatea usefis [ ves are as fouows

_umj an: j ouldings ; o 4 ) -
*o 5% h ume
3% <ira g*\t hnﬁ

Netwofk

Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost. epreciated Jntii they are

avatable for use

Where faciors, such as tecrnological sdvancemert or cranges in rarkel price, incicate that residual value

or wseful Ife nave cnanged, the resicua; vatue, useful life or depreciation rate are amendad prosseciively to
reflect the new crcumztances The assets are reviewead for impairment f the above factors ndicaie that the
carrying amourt may be impaired

Gains and losses on dizposats are determined by cormparirg the proceeds withh (ae carry'ng amcunt and are
recognised witrin profit or loss
Intangibls assels

Jmtjcaﬁb!e Gssets are sigted at cost @35 accumuiaied arrortizaton and accumulated impairment [0ss
Armorisaticr s calcu%ated, Lsing the straight-ling method, 1o allocate the desreciable amount of the assets

C trarr residual values over ther estmated useful lives, as foanws

Developmm

Sof ','/a'ra

[

Arrorisation expenses gre Inciuded N adminisiranve expenses

Developrment rghts reiate to plannng consant to bung a solar fanm and a wird ‘arm acgured on atguisition.
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Where factors, such as changes In market price, 1ndicate that residuai valus or useful e havo changed, tne

residual value, useful fe or anortisation rate are amerdad prospectively o 1efiect tne riew ¢ roumstances
Tne assets are reviewea formpairmernt if the a e factors .ndicate that the Carrying amount may

Leases

Lincesuon the Group assesses agreements that rransfer the ngnt to use asceis

UD

wnetner the ar-angemertis or contains, a lease pased on the tubsiarice of the arrargemen: and wrretner

the lease should be classihed a2z either a finance lease or an operating lease

ssots that rarsfer substantialy all the rsks and rewards incaental to ownership a2 class 9ed as

ases. Finance lesses aro capiiabsed at the commencement af the lease at the farr value of the
oreciated ovar the shaorter of tne lease ferm and the estimated useiul Ufe of the a

for impalrment af each reporting date

Leases that do not transfer all :

Payrmen:is under operatirg lease
pericd of the lease.

nd rewards of cwnership are clasuifea as operaung leases.

arged fo the profit anc loss account on a sraighi-ine Hass over the

Investments

The Company halds investments in a subsidary at cost less accumulated irparment losses, * an
impairmenrt (o33 is sulbseguenty reversed, the <arnyng amount of the investment s increasea (o the revisec
estmaie of Its recoverable amount, tus only to the extent that the revisec carrying amournt does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined hac no impairrment (685 beern recognised @1 prior
pencds. A reversal of an impairment 1055 is re nised in the oroft and loss account.

Cash

Casrincludes cash in nand and depnsits repayab.e on darmand Restncted cash regreserts cash for which
the Group does net have immediate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal reguirements restrc
the uze of the cash.

Stocks

Raw rrateria.s, spare parts and consuematles are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable va.ue Where
Necessar y prow.\n s made for chsolete, slow-maoving and defective stock. Costis determined on the
fiest-in, fre L (FIFG) method.

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter) are valued on an average cost basis over one 1o two months and orovision for
unusabie ltter 13 reviewed montnly and applied to off-site stack

Fuel stock of straw has been valued at the historical cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusatle straw
15 identfied on an individual stack oasis and s revewed montrly Stocks are used o= a first in, first out

Stocks of azh at Fibrophos are valLes at the lower of cost and net realisatie value to the Group.

~r
ﬁ
9“{7
)
o)
=
B

Stocks of property develooment work in progress UWIRT) are stated at the lower of cost and ne
va.us Cost comprses direct materals and, wnera applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads inat

nave teen incurred 1N bringng the stocks o tneir present wocations and condition.
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Al each reporting date, an assessment 1s made for imparmeant. Any excess of tha carrying amount of
stocks over its estimated seling price less costs to complete and sell s 'cc:gmsed as an impairment (0ss
through the profit and sz accourt. Reversals of Imparmert iosses are also recognsed in the prohit and
loss account.

Agcryed incoms
Accrued Income on ‘.oaf‘s 15 calculated at the rate of interes® set out in the ‘can contracts. Enerqy imcome is
cerued over the pericd in wrich it has teen generated.

Daferred ncome

Liefered incorme is recognsed i accordance witn the terms set oLt in tne contzct Deferred incorne is
t

released to e proft and loss account in the perod to which it relatas.

Financia! inslruments

tens 11 and 12 of FRS 162 e respect o financal nstramenis

[~

The Group nas chosen 1o adopt &

Financisl assetls

Bazic financial assets, inciudirg trade and otrer receivales and cash and bank caances are initally

recognised at transaction price, uniess the srrasgement constitutes a inanaing transaction, whera the
fransaciion 1s measured 3t the present vawe of the futdre receipts discounted at a rrarker rate of Inerext
Suck assets gre subsequerlly carr od at arrortised cost using e e¥achve intarest matrod.

At the end of eacn reporting penod financal
evidenice of imoairment. i @ asset 15 impaire
amount ard the present va.ue of the esimated cas

ate. Tremnarment loss is recognised In oroft Cr loss.

Other Bnanaiay g including investmeants ir equity nstruments wrich are net subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures, are iniuaily measured at fair value, which is normaily the transaction prce. Such a35ets are
subseqguently carned at farr vawe and the changes in far vatue are recogn sed 'r profit or loss, excest that
irvesiments in equity instruments tnat are not puslicly traded and whose fair values cannot 08 measared
rel:zbiy are mezsured at cost [@ss mpalrment

Fnancial aseets are derecogrised when (@) ine contractual rghts B ire cash flows frorm the asset expre or

are settled, or ( al the risks and rE"-Nards of tre owrership of the ascet are fransferea to

anothes party or [0 cortrol of the asset a3 peen transferred to anotner party wro has the oractical ability

o arulateratly

the aszet o an urretated trrd pacty without impesing adaitionat restrictions.

Financizl Habilities

Basic Anancal laoihues, intwang trade ang other cayac.es, bank losns, 'eans from feliow Crouo comoanes

a
and prefererce shares, are intiady recogrised at tra sututes a
-

fnancirg transachion, wiere the deot rstrament |

t @ marxer rate of interest

.
seounted

4%)

i
i
H
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Debt instruments are subseauently carqed at amortised cost, using the effectve interest rate method Fees
oaid or tre establichrrent of loan faclties are recagrises as transact or costs of the can to the extent that
it s probable that sore or ail of the facility will be arawn cown i the case, the fee ‘s geferred until the
draw-down occlrs To the extent there is ne evidence that it 15 probable that same or all of the facility wilt
oe drawn down, the fee s canitatized as a ore-payrnant for Uguidity services and amortised over the pero

of the faziuty w which it relates

Trade payaoles are ¢ ‘o pay far goods or services tnat have been acquired in the ordinary courss
of business from supplicrs AcCounts Cayable are Classified as currentuabilites it payment 1s due wihin one
e

v are presentad as non-current Lamilities, Trade payables are recogrised initiaily at

=2
=)
)
O
3
73]

year or less, if not, th

tranzaction orice anc subsequently measzured at amertised cost using the effective interest metnad.

Financial liabitt.es are derecogn sed wher the lability 15 extinguisned. taat 13 when the contractual cbligation

15 discharged, cancelled or expires

Provisions
Frovisicris are mande wihere an event has taker place tnat gives the Group a legal or constructive obligation

a
ic benefit, ang a relable estimate can be made of

that prooably requires settiermenrt by a transfer of econcm
the armount of the Obllgat:on.

Frovisiore are charged as ar expense to the profit ang wss account in the year that the Group becomes
aware of the oblgation, and are measJdred st the best estmate at the calance sheel date of tne expenditure
required to settle the oagation, taking nto account relevart risks and uncertairtes,

Hedaging
The Groun applies hedge accounting for transachors ertered Irto 1o marage the cash flow exposures of
borrcwangs. Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures anc are designatec as cash
ow hedges of floating rate borrowings Cnarges in the fair values of derivatives designated as cash flow
nedges, and which are effective, are recognised drectly in eguity Any ineffectiveness in the nedgng
relat.onsh o (baing the excess of the curru ative change in fair value of the hedging instrument since
incepticon of the beage over tre cumiLlative change in the farr value of the hedged itern since :nception of
the nedge; 15 recogniced in the profit and |
The gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income 15 reclassiiied o e profit and 0ss in
accordance with the cash flows of the hedged item Hedge accounting is discontinued wrer the nedging
Instrument expres, ro lorger meets the hedgirg critena, tne forecast transaction 1s no longar ighly
prokbable, the hedged debt irstrument is derecognised or thg hedging instrumeant is termicateo.

Share capital

Ordinary sharas issued by tre Group are recogrised in eqsity at the value of tne proceeds rece ved. with the

excess over nominal value being credh e premium

Mon-controlling interasts
Non-controllng interests are measurad at ther proporticnate share of the acquiree’s idenufiable net assets
at the date of acauisition.

1
Fheliaiieah
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Key sccounting judgemants and estimates

The preparation of financial staterrents in complance win FRS 102 requires the use of certam cril

dg mentin applyng the Company's
aluaed and are based or. nisiorcal

accountng estirmates. It also requires managerient 1o exercise ju
accounting polcias. tstmates and judgements are conunually ev
experierce and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed o e reasonable
under the crrcumstances. The key estimates and judgemenis in preparnng these finzncia slatements are.

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loans and advances 1o customers, :Ncluding associated accrued income balances, are reviewed for
imparment on a guarterly basis. In Cons derng the need for a provision, managetmert detarrmine therr best
estimate of the expeacted future casr flows on g case by case pasis, As ths estimate reles or a certar
numper of assurnptions about future evenis which rray aiffer f!orr“ actua. cutcomes, incudng the
Dorrower’s abiE:ty to repay interest and caghial dug in “uture perwods this grves rice to Judgement as to
whether there 5 a shortfall between trie carrying valle and the far vaiue of the debior talance,

Managemert note that prowsions aganst .oans and advances ‘s a crocal estimate and bave therefore

vty analysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per centir the amount provided against the estmated ba.ance at risk would have resuttes in

isits

performed sensitvity anaiysis on the provision. Tre results of the sen

E£3 6m less/more experditure baing charged o the imcomes stgicrent ouring the period. Sae note 13 for tre
carrying amount of the debtors and provisicns at 30 June 2022

ii. Vatue of property development work in progress { WIP') {estimate)

Property development WIFP s reviewed for :mpairment on a periodic basis. in considenng the need for 3
provisicon, maragermen: determine ther vest estimate of tne recoverable value Maragement engsge ar.
expert exterra. valuer to provide key azsurrptions abous future events which reay differ from actual
outcorres, inciucing groparty valuations, raie of sa.es and cevelopment costs.

These estmates give rise 10 judgement a5 to wnetrer there is a shortfall between tre Carrying vaue and the

i

T
[l

farr value of the nalance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year erd, manazerment have reviewed ihe

J

assurmiphons used (c cetermine the vae of property developmrert WIP and have abserved no changes in
perferrance that would 1mpact the vaiuation a5 a3 the 30 June 2022, See rnote L2 for the carrying am:ourt
fthe property developmert WIF

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

The Group owns bwo energy generatng sabsidiaries in Australia which have entered into purchase prce

agreements (PPAs) in 2019 and 2021 Tne PPAS include a contract ‘or offerences "CID" whereby the
upsicianes pay/rece ve arourts from the cusiomer based on the differences tetween a fixed seling onice

cual prnice for eleniricity sold 1o tne Australian energy rmarket The direciors peueve tre contract 1s

a

outside the scope of RS 102 sectior. 12 as tis for the sate of @ non-fnarcial lem and the TF0 s typica: for

rngements Therefore it s being accourted for ur FRS 102 secnon 23 3¢ a revenue Contract wit
re

a
varialb.e CorSIGeranor, rather than reva.w-g the ertre contrac? 1o far valle

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

Tre cost of a business Combimaiion : the fair vaide of tie corsideraton gven, halkilities incurred plus the
casts directly attnibutas the busingss combinauon. Far value o these corrbnat ons 15 3 key estimae

and maore details are provided or gages 4510 48
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
The provision for decommissioning costs is measured at managemeni's best estimalte of the present va.
of the expenditure reguired to settle the future cbligation ‘o return land or wh cn there are operatio=al wirnd

and solar farms, to its or.gnal conditon. The level of the provisions is determmen to a significant aegree oy
the estimation of future disrmantlirg and restoration costs, as well as the tming of disrmantiement

Wind Farms (estimate):

ManageTen: note tnat decomrissicning provis.cns is a crtical estimate and have therefore performed
sensitivity analysis The resuits of the sensitavity analysis conclude that a change of +/- one per certin the
diccounl rate woud have rebulfw i B2 i increase/decrezse in the provicion. See rote 17 for the provision
recognised at 30 June 2022. Maragement utilize external experuse (o provide an estirnatad cost o
disrrantle and have used & d'scount rate of 2% to reflect tke tre in value of money and the risks specfic

1o the ooligation.

Austratian solar farms (judgement);

The Grodp s requred to restare the leased prerises of the solar farm o their ongmal coniton at the end
of the lease term. A provision was praviously recognized, hiowever in the current year this judgerrent hias
beer reassessed and management believe the iessor may wish Lo either take utie of the assets for aither
contimued use or to realize value through selling the assets and as such do not celbeve that ar outflow 13
prohatie to setile this resioration obugation,

UK Solar {estimate):

Durnng the year, a third party performed ar assessment of the base cost of the oecommissiconing of the
Grouns UK sgiar farms, The firdings have resulted in matenal change in the cost estimate and therefcre a
provisior has peen recognised “or the first irme on some sites The impact has resulted 0 a provision teing
ra'sed for £18m to the balance sheet deco*nmis:swomrgg haonty and fixed assets. As at 30 June 2022 there 1s
ro impact on the prefit and less. Sites not affected are addrested below

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Maragement believe that giver the nature of thase particular assats, tre lessor may wish o 2 ther take title
of the assets for either continued use or to realise value throcugr selling the assets and as such do not
believe that an cutfiow 15 probable to settie this restorat on obligat on, Management will continue to montor
the situauicn at each balance cheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The vaiue of goodwill neid by the Group and nvestments in subs.diary undertakings held by the Corrpary
is reviewed arndally for imoairment. The recoverabiaty of these baances is considered witn reference 1o the
present value of the estimated future casn fiows Tnese calculahicns use cash flow proections which extend
forward forecast business performance together with assumptions surrcunding the expecied life of the
asset, exterrally prepared forecasts and valuations, and any adjusiments reguired to the discount rate to take
accoun: of busmness ns< The esurmated present valuie of these future cash flows is ensitive to ne discount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, ali of which reguire management s judgement, Testing of the
carrying vaiue has been performed during the year, which Fas involved several scenanos being maodelled
Based on this testing and the resulting impairment reccgrised on nvestments, management believes there
15 sufficient headroom 1o suoport the value of gocdwill ard investments in subsidiary entities,

lanagement note that impairmen: of goadw [l anc investments is a critical estmate and have therefore
performied sensit vity analysis or the provision Tne resulis of the sensitivity analysis corclude that a change
of +/- ore per cent in the armount orovided against the estimatad balance at risk woula have resulted In
£5.49m less/more expenditure being charged 1o the incore statement during the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amodnt of the goodwil. and nveztments at 30 June 2022




527

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
b T !

Analysis of turnover by category |

2022 2021

R s s e DR Bt © %% BE Tty TS DS RE hann BT RE A BBRRRL, L TG £ wa TSR

Lending 2
Energy operaticns - solar, resene power and wing 365,958 179,820 i
Erergy oparstions - bomass and lardfil 223,526 141,826

Heaanoars aoaranons’ 45,978 42 266

Fame bulding 25,034 -
Fibre operations 8,930 48328
711,830 425302
Inciuded i income ‘ram healthesre oporaucrsis Li7 4 (2020 FLL 2ol reiating 0 (ke cale of retirerrant vilage unis, ;
and £259 amr (2021 £37 “mij i relgron to services rendored
Analysis of turnover by geography
2022 2021
£000 £:000 3

603,911 384,799 .
Furope 84,433 31893 ;
Rast of word 23,486 8,610 ‘

Urded Kingaom

711,8'.;6

Other income

2022 2021 ‘
N ‘ £000 £000 !

4 darmages and nsurance proceeds 3,550 9454
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This 1s staied after chargirgHcreciting):

(restatexd}
2022 2021

£000 £O00

Amnartsation of intangehie assets (ncte 3} 37.849 37704 i
irpairrent of intanabsle assels {ole 8 7,913 - :

Depreciation of targicle assets (nofe 9 101,802 84657

a5 146

waditors remmuneration — Company ard the Group's caonsolidaes
I

| staements

Augizors remuneration - aucit of Carncany's subsic anes 819 1134
ALinors remuneraton - non aLait services 246 513
Audiror’ reruneration — tax Comp.arce services 482 672

Di¥ference an forcign exchange 7.772 4402
Operdt ng fease rantals 13,783 7502

Note 26 details the orior penod adidstments

2022 2001

e e e e £'000 £'000

‘f"d':esa“dsa\af\e; B T e iae Fermn S ﬁs;:&sgﬁumsds
Scaisl securty costs 7,081 500
5,233 1676
95706 46868 :

Otngr pension Coss

The Group provides a defined contnbution schearmres for its employess in the UK The amount recognised as

n
an experse for the defined contribution scheme s shown In the able above
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021

Number Number

s ST isn pevanpases v

2rodu o 1,032 699
Adrrinistration 631 348

3 3
1666 1050

AR PR

The Comgary had one errployee other than Direciors dunng the pericd ended 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel.

it
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L N SR B

2022 2021
£000 £000
A s AU M 52 TP Y DR 1 T, 7B 3 PPN st 50 sraes RERE 3958 868 1 e 4 PN PRt EY R Y anad S i

Ernoluments 176 163

Durng the year no penson contributinns were made inrespect of the directors (2021 noney.

The Greup nas no other key managernent (2021 nonel

I I I IR

A numuoer of subsidiarios of the Group operate a cash-zetted LTIP o gualfying employees, whereby

emmoyeﬁs render services in exchange for cash, tne arnourt of wricr s determined by referenige to the
valauon of the underying sabs.diary Tre fair value ¢f the liapiity for the awards made s measured at eac
res mhg date and a U = settlerment aate. Tae fair vawe s recognised over the vasting period The amcunt
of expense recognised takes Nt account ire best avaitab.e estmate of the number of urite expecied te
vest under the service and perforrmance conditions urderlying each awars granied

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees
2022 2021

Number of Number of
awards awards

i R T B T T P T TP

’)Lpﬁlrwq outstancing ‘(:u.ﬁﬁfjf; 1,914,751 1,640,000
;rrmt d dm g s oo ad 1 763,563 274 751

Closmg outstandmg balance 3 678, 314 1 9147

The tctal charge for tre year was £3,133.000 12021 £1.334,000) and at the 30 June 2022 there was a
Labiity of £2,407 000 rcluded within cred tars greater than ore year (2021 £1,334 000,

6 -

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
] o ) E'000 £ OO”
Imizrest on nark balances 130 997

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£'000 £000

e v srgRamency s T tREEE sas SR bebems % SSSaaas ae a0 bER Temais s b T T XRLBEUER Y700 VPRRE BAk eSO PRy 1 L) O AR ARG oue

L on ”ark borres #iriS 32,192 34378
Armorusaton of issae Tosts on bank barrowings 2,597 1103
’Pfoh hno*; on J*’hxjat ve ﬁr g!’”: aing Tuments (1 235} 587

33,554 36068
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7o

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
wwwww S PRSI NROPOURO. s SOORUPON sk
;:urrenttax e e e Ne e e g ew mreses s ezens . Ssevmer gt g Rt
UK corporation tax charge on profitdloss) for the year (297) 1648
Adjusiments in recpect Of pRor peroas 3,156 {2.866)
I OTEgn 1ax 5 ufferm 5,641 -
ota Imrre-ﬁ-* Tax murgpucredl*lm- S maﬂ,.;>4maw (1218}
Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversac of trning d'fferences 6,227 2,074
Adiustrrents in respect of pacr penods {3,741) (3,298)
Fflect of Fkamr'e Ir tax rates 5 268 ll 4'31
Tax charge on profiff(iossj on drdinéry activities N - 16,294 8,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year 15 higher (2021 higher) than the standard rate of corporanen @xin the UK of
19% (2021 19%). The differences are exg.aned be.ow:

(restated)
2022 2021
e OO OU OO J.:c SRR icic
Profflossibetoretax o a7eos o elion
{uss] before ta iy S n';cf
s:ﬁ;!;;oni; : rh:_( SKUIQ‘; l“;"/ij jOS.zS.IJ ”/: " 9.045 (4.022)
Effects of
Expenses not deducibie for tax purposes 11,72% 16,676
Otrer effects (868) 1022
Incorne not terable for tax purposes (8,102} (2,351
Adiusiments in respect of pnor penog {545) 6,865)
~rfeu orckarue ir ax rares 5,041 11489
Totaltax charge for the year S S 16294 o 8349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted or 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to
25%. effective 1 Ap-il 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measurad at 25% (2021 25%)
which regpresenis the future Ccorporation tax rate that was enacied a2t the balance sheet date

Note 28 details the prior period adjustments
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g

Software Goodwill Development
{restated) rights
£000 £'000

o BT R SRR R wah o Eree

Group £'000

Cost
AL July 2021 restatecs 964 726,602 10,216

Acouired through business - 30,042 4,058
Ccompinations (ote 27}

Adaitions 2125 1.040

Disnosals - (21,118} -
- 7930

" soss 743456 15314

Sain on transia
At 30 June 2022

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 Ju'y 2021 restated! 167 159,902 1,634
Clsposais - (2462) -

Loss on franslation - (192) -
Imparrrrent - 7913
Crarge or the year 12 37,314 523

At 30 June 2022 " 0 1e 202475  1ss7
Net book value
At 30 June 2022

At 50 June 2021 (estatad! 857 566,700 5,182

2,970 540,981 13,757

Total

....E000

737,782
34100

3,165
{21,118}
7930

761,859

161.043
(2,462}
(192)
7913
37,8{3‘9“‘

204,151

557,708
576,739

Trie gam on transiaus- of foreign currency denominated goodwillis recogrised in cther comprehensive

ircome Arrcrtisation of gocdwili s Charged to adminisat on Ccosts.

D June 2022 can oe found o o 27

Detals of the subsidiares acquired auring the year e~dec 3

Durng the year tre group dsposed of 2 wind farms i1 Finland, as a result £2.5m of

a
amortisaton was recogrised in the curent year and £16 3m of gooaw!l was real sec on the sale. Gan on

sale recognisea n the profit and iogs in relation t© tis fransaction was £28m

Imparrnant of £7%m has teen recognised on goadwil (20210 none).

Tre Cormpany nad no 1miangible assets at 30 Jure 2022 2021 none

Note 26 deta'ls the pr or perod adpastiments
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= B N

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated}

{restated)
Group £'000 E‘DOO Ego00 . E'000 £'000
o e - R e -
At L Suly 2321 (reslated 8531 217467 1695437 27.288 43,277 2.092.000
Addiors 829 1536 73647 634862 238,006 374,480
1.3G8 - S1.344 - 57663 110,315

FXifair value T overtent - - 368 - 3294 3662
Tra-aiers - 68 1,066 30,936 {32,070) -
Dicocsals {135) - {75850 - - {76,086}
At30June2022 10533 315,071 1745511 118,686 310470 2504371
Accumutated deprecmtlon o o S .
Al ey 2021 4410 90,05% 414,559 1,290 - 510,318
Charge “ortre year 183 17130 81.141 3248 - 101,802
Disposals - - 182 (221) - 1403
FXA mioverren: - - (776) - - (776)
At30 June 2022 4,593 167,18§ '494,742 4,417 - “6i0,941
Net b°°kvaiue e A e T e
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AT 35 June 2021 ‘freszatocf 7 4121 227408 1280878 25998 43277 1,581,682

Included witkhin tan

ginle assets are captalised finance costs directly atrributabie to bringing tne asset into
gamaou

use, The net carryin nt of agsets neid umdﬁw Jnance leases incluced in plart, machiney. fixiures and
fithngs is £51. 785,00 | £51.534.000 ] Includad in network assets is 2 provesion of £1,823,000 for
oosalete equipment and evelopmemt.

G20

The Company had no targible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel

Note 26 detads the prior pericg adjustrrents
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40 e

Unlisted
investments Total
Group e ] L £'000 £000
PSR nét o value e e R R R £ T R 3 s AT S o .
At 1 July 2021 11,000 11,600
Adotions 129452 129,452
{105,000} (105, OOO)
‘ 35,4§Z. o 35 452 i
o T oo 11000
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company £000 - £'000
c:ost 1 B B RS 15 AR OES L B ERSARA AL B EAATEA h smA et 14 o amfes o 4 L8 6 % € ST % 90 KA SNSRI AR PTRRERAE 8 A 21 @
AL S0 Jure 2021 2.311,678 2311678
Adriit ors 228,300 228,30G
Dl;i,’D"'}H - -
At30June2022 S 539978 2539978
Accumulated impairments . - S h ‘
At 20 Jure 2021 195312 185,312
FEeverea! of impairmerts (195,312 (185,317)
Iipalrments - -
At303une2022 ................................ S e
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,539,978 2 539 978
AO30 Cune 2021 S T Jneses 2116366

Cetalls of relatee undertak ngs are shown 1 note 29,

Unlisted investments comprise the Group's howding of tne members’ capital of Terido LLE a2 tending

busi-ess, ang as sharenolding in Bracke~ Tradng Limitea Fern co-founded Terido LLF in Octoper 2012 with

tre intertucn of conducting a proporacn of s fuldre trace tnrough tne parinerstip, Additons and dispesals
of un. sted nvestments relate to investments and divestrnents .n Tendo __P ¢ line with Ferr's cashk
recurerrents and o Lilise surplus funds. Farn has a smal sharehold ng 1 3racken Trading Uimited from

time to tirme Sern's irvesiment in Sracken Trading Lirmited at 30 June 2022 was £NIL, 30 June 2521, Enil
Tne director: do not consider Tendo LLP or Zracke~ Tradng Limited © be subs miary urdertakings of Fern
Tracing “rmites.
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A Uove oo Lo
Cast includes cash in hand and deposits repayab.e or demnana

Restricted caszh reprezents casn for which the Group coes not have mmeadiate and direct access or for

wiCh requiatory o lRgal requiirerents resinict the use of the cash

Group
2022 2021
OOt £090
Restngren cash 60 592 SJ 337
Césh at banic andin Hand . . - 256 415 - 172478

Restricted casn s comprsed of £726,000 held in Zscrow and £59,.866 CLC of cash held n subsichanies with
bi-annuat distibut.on windows.

The Comeany bad a cast balarce of £6,422 000 as at 30 June 2022, rore of whicn was restncied (2021
ronel

1E o=

Group
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Rsr. -~ » S RS R A Y 5 S OB R R O RS Tese WM?}%
Fuel, spare parts and consumabies 26,023 18,593
Properny deveooment Wik 156 918 73 j23
n T e e e : e e 134 e e 94 711 -

The amount of stocks recogrised as an exaense dunng the year was £220,413,000 (2021, £41 212,000,
Included in the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock vaiue 12 a provisior: of £320,0C0 for unusable fusl
stock (2021 £459.000) Including n property development WIP 15 a provision of £928,000 for warranty and
site spec £¢ provisicns

There has been ne imparment ecognised durnng the year on stock (2021 nonel. N invertory has ceen
pledgeda as security for lagilities (2027 none)

The Comgany had ~o stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 none;.
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i B PR ST

Group Company
{restated}
2022 2021 2022

~_£'000 £000

R Tk o AT —

Arﬁounts falling due aﬂé}' one year
16,128 -

Loars and advances 1o CUsiomners 137,662
Amounts fatling due within one year
Loans ang adwvannog (o Customens 223,239 369,384 -

42,050 16,121 392
32,950

20,199 24,972 3,843

Trade debtors
Arnaunts owed by related partice inole 24) - 3,950

Crhar ceptors

Corporanon tax - 6602 2,527
Dervative inanaiat mstrumeants (ncte 21 54,409 6469 -
145,602 154 375 176

623,161 598,002 39,888

£000 B

12,751
5008

32616

50,383

-

Loans and advances 1o custorers are staled net of provsions of 13874000 (2021 E184155,000)
& )

Prepayments and accrued ncome are siatec ret of provisions of 27,730,000 (2021 215747080

No nterest s chargec on armourts owed by group sndeartak ngs, as the eutstanding baances are ursecured

and repayable on demand (2021 nong]

Note 25 details tre pror pened adjustments
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4 oo
Group

{rostated)

2022 2021

P L L

F%arm Io(m ’1d omrdrarh i U( 1bl

./%E\j."\ 0

STATET

[ \J \J

£000

T RBARKE UL EREY 6D bl du kR bR An o 1T AR ue AL

JUNE 2022

F OOO

Company

2022
£

2021
£000

FRARDLARE AR NP AR DL Ss

87,732 4/ ’8“ - -
Srade creditors 58.004 23,380 76 16
Otrer tarat on and sooial secur ty 9.161 - - -
Ctrer creditors 24,362 55,906 - -
ArnoLris due o related part s inote 24) - - - 20,203
France leases (note 16) 2,428 z147 - -
Dervatve Arancial insrurrents (note 21) - 143 - -
d ceferred income 75,465 72 087 373 2 7Cu
T seas2 202059 448 22024
15 .- ‘ . g
Group
2022 2021
Arqggnts falling due between one and five years S E'OOO ) ) £°000
Bank tcans and overdrants nore 16) e 383070 247297
Finance eases (nom 16 5,899 6,125
Derivat ve fFnancial instrurrerts inote 21) - -
Citrer creditors 5, 364 5 415

394,333

258 837

Amounts falling due after more than five years

Group
2022
£000

FrnTRemaome gy Futuon o e

Bank loans ang overdratss (note 18]

Finance .eases inote 16;

Deryative fnancal instruments (o

Totat creditors falling due ater meare than one year

573,416
24,676

598092

992,425

2021
£000

RS SRR T T T A R S AR RS TR

577,235
24,495

42 77?

644 502
903,339

The Corcpany Pas ne credrors due in grezter than one year

Amrounts owed o related partes are unsecured, non-interest beanng ard res ydb

Note 26 dezails the pricr pericd agjustmenss

on derrand
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L T B E AT AN PO LI GRS b

2021
Group o £000
Due between ore and five yoars 383,070 247297
Due in srore 1nan five years L 573 416 577,235

1 044 218 871 918

The Company had rno hank loars at 30 June 2022

The bang lcans are secured agamst assets of the Group with each loan as held by inc subsid.ary showr below
i ¥

Interest rate 2022
e montn SONIA pus 160% 429138
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - -

3 month EURIBCR plus

1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70% 30,946 24995
Efloz Energy 5 12% + 6 manth EURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomerang Frergy Limitec & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344
Darlingion Poirt Solar =arm Pty rnited 6.49% (swap rat;z(;;jf;‘;;} 114,026 -
Melion Renewable Tnergy UK Lirnited & rmonth SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718 103,439
Dulscos W Howdeo TY i 1d 17% + BBSY 31,614 -
Flvia Hames Cpmited 5% + SONIA + 2 5.% nor- 12,306 -

utilisation fee

Zestec Aszer Manage ement i el Fixed rate 2.5% 43 -

1044218 871918

SONIA replacec LIBOR as the effectve irterbark lending rata system frorm 1 January 2022 The rate cnange
reswited N no commercial impact 1o the business

Finance leases

The future mnmum fnance lease cayments are as follows.

2022 2021

£'000 __foo0
Not later thar one year 2,428 3,166
Later than one year ard not later thar Fre years 5,899 6,196
Later thar five yesars 76,461 72,013
Toal grose cayments 84,788 81,375
me ﬁn ree rﬁar“rn {51,785) (47 609)
Carrylng amount of the 1lab|1|ty o - - o 33,003 - 33766

Tre firance leases pnmarily relate o a leazed buiding a~d healthcare ecuicrment Tnere are no cortingent
rental, renewal or purchase option clauses Aents cayatle :ncrease by local nftaton Finance leases are
securet against tre leased sssets

Trne Coripary had no finance leases at 20 Jure 2022
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17 "o v n o

15

Decommissioning
provision
Growp ... . .. Eo00
At 1 July 2021 20439
Inzrease recogrised in proht and (oss 21
INCREESE rEC DS KUy oler cormnurehchsve neor e -
Impmrment 16
Ingrease recognized It fixed assets 23,656
Recognised on subsiciary aogusito -
Adustraent ir respect Of prior years -
Unwnging of dscounl 249
Adpustment relating (o Cnange @ 3CCouning mate {3.373)
Gain e transiation
At 30 June 2022 41,023
The decormmissioning provisicn 1s held to cover future obiigatiors (o return i

oDerationa, wind, slomass and solar farms, to the
utibzed for ir excess of 25 years

The Company rad no provisons at 30 June 2022

Note 26 details the prior period adiustments

18 L - oo Lo

The Group and Corneary have the

i crignal condition.

foillow ng share capital

The amo

{restated} ({restated)
Deferred tax Total
20,833 41,372
11485 11,516
18,202 18,202
- 16
- 23,656
(3.568) (3.568)
(5465} (5,465)
- 249
- {3.373)
41,597 82 620

ana on which there are

Jrts are not expected to be

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £000 ~£'000
1616622011 2021 1195,755,258) -

Ordinary shares of L0 10 each 161,662 149676
Company 2022 2021
Ailotted cailed-up and fully paid S E'000 £'000

16,6220 0 43 9]
16 6522, 411 (2021 14567355258] 161,662 145,676

Owchinary shares of £0 10 each

Dunng the year the Croup issued 119 866,754 (2021
aggregate norminal va.ue of £11,987000 (2021 £1

50,
consideranon of £203.750,000 (2521 £2,316.695,00

1
Q) w

1,501,199,278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an

20,0001 Of the shares 1ssued curing the year, total

was paid for the shares, giving rise 1o a premium of
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£191. 763000 (2021 £173.118.GC0) During the year the Group ourchasea ni 12021 4,444,020) of its own

“

ordinary shares of £G 10 each with an aggregate nominal value of £nil (2021 £444,200). Towat consicaration

of £ril (2021 £6,844 000; was paid for the shares, giving rise to a prermium of £nil 12021 £6,355%,000). i
The Grodp nas adopted predecessor accounting princples as it was formed as part of a group !

reconsiruction, therefore the share capital ana share prem:um account are treated as if they nad aiways
existed Movements n share capital ansing both before and after the resrLoiure are reported as Mmovements

in the Group share cap'tal.

Curmg the year the Company issued 115,866,754 (2021, 2,501,199 278) ordinary shares of £0 10 each for ani
aqgregate nominat value of £11.987 000 (2021 ElS.Jlldu,J 1 (O the shares 1ssued during the year, tclal
consideraticn of £203,750.000 (2027 £2,316.695,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise 1o a |
£191,764,000 (2021 £2,166,575.000) Dunng the year the Group pumﬁa”ed nil {2021 4,444 020) of irs own

-

ordirary shares of £0 10 each with an aggregate nomiral vaiue of Zail (2021 £442 000 <ota'\ consideration

P
|

of £ril {2021 26,844 C0CH was paud for the shares, giving nise to a premiem of Znl (2 fZl £6,399.007]

H
H
H
i

Trere is a single class of ordinary shares. Thare are no resticiions on the gistricuton of dividerds and “he
repayrment of capial

Cash flow hedge reserve !

Thie cash filow hedge reserve 15 used 1o record transactions arising frorm the Group's cask flow
hedging arrangemernts

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arizes from the differerce betweer thie far value of the shares szues and the book
vatlues of the s.bs'denes acqurec

ne movement in Non-coriroiing ntercsts was as follows

Nate 2021
£000 :
9,570 ﬁ
ua‘ﬂ of iub%idlar"/ undertakings ard acguston 57 _ (1. 842)
of non coniro !
Toal compreiens v loss attnbutable to
[aial comprehens vo lo nbutable to (6.622) 4.007)
"‘\Qr C{)ﬂf' \HWJ INTE
At 20 Jure 7022 (2,901) 3721

1
]
1

sgh

—— iy

setud LTl by

Sesfaseenn
ihoteiai
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2000

Az at 30 June 2022 there wers no contngencies acress the Group or Compary

A

Carrying amounis of tnancial assers and abilit'es
Group Company
' {restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
GPOUR s ms s sty o s €000 £090 £000 £009
Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instrurrents measured at amorased cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767
- £.469 - -
54,409 - - -
Mezsured at amort-sec cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
Measured at fair value tnrough other comprehensive income - 42772 - -

Nete 28 detals the prior pernod adiusiments

it
Al g e LA
e
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Derivative financial instruments
The Grouo's financial rsk Management seeks to mn rise the exnosdre 1o market rsk, creait nsk, liguid ty
and cash flow rick, and energy market <5k

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
The energy sector s expernencing

s u
not achieved due 1o changes in wholesale energy prices, off-lake contracts or gover

n
Changes in Government polcy, or regulator intervert on may resull in reduced income
groun due to additonal levias,

Currency risk

Tre Group presents 1S corsohdatea Francal statererts i stering ans cordLcis Dus ness 1 a nurnoer of
other currencies, principally Sure ana Australizn doliar Conseguently, the Groun 1s exposed o foreign
exchange rsk due to exchange rate maovements, which affect tre Group's transactional experses and the
wrarsiation of earning and net assets of 1ts non-stern ng ooeratons

Transactional exposures

Transactional exposures arise from admimisirat ve and otheér expenie ir currencies ofner than the Groun's
presentational curcercy [Sterling) Tre Group enters n to ‘orward foraign excharge conoacs and fare.gn
exchange swaps to mMingate the exchange rate rsx for certain foreign curency payables and recepts The
forward currency Coniracts ard swaps are measured at fair value, whick s defermred using va.uation
rechriques that utilise observable irputs The key nouts used in vau.ng the derivatives are the forwacd
excharge rates for GBFAUD g~ ’_;5” EUR. Or 30 Sune 2022 the fair value of the foreign currercy

contrac asset of End (2021, £6£,269.200) ard a liazuity of £l 21' £143,

Translational exposures

Balance sreel translaticral exposures ar se on consclidahion on the retra-station of the balance sheer of
non-siering operations into stering, the Grouo's presentaional currency. The evel of exgosure s reviewed
by management and the poental foreigm exchange movemert is within a= acceptable level of nisk and

therefore, tymcaly. the Group's policy o not to actvely hegge thasa cxposures

Interest rate risk

The Groun has exposure to fluctuations in irterest rates on ¢ borrowngs Where the Groun enters inic
Lorrowing srrangernents with floating rate interest, a swap arta \QE’T‘"FT 5 enered nto w fir a porten of
the interestin order o mitigate against ar ircrease in nierest rates. The coruon of interest 1o be fxed s

assessed 07 8 Case Ly €238 pasis Maragement can elect whether 1o hesge account “or these

arrangements on ar individual ransaction pas s and Rave elected to apoly hedge accc-um;ng for rierest

rate swaps The s are based or acr.ocpal aroun: of the loas fac!ity and mature on the same date
Cr 30 June 2022 the cutstanding nternct «aTe swans have a maturity i 2xcess of ﬁve vears ana the fai

vatue is in an asset postion of 5 ALS 00T (2020 uabiity of 242,629,000

Price risk

Q.
(3]
bl
cLJ

The Groun s a 5mort- to megium-tern lercer to theres riy market 7o the extent tnat trere s

detenoration in the tevel of house orices

p“opf«m 3 % [ the urup, {oans are secured
.

against, there s a risk trat tre Groug rray rot recoup its full exposure Thsis miugatea by tre sror-term
natu-e of tne loans and the conservative ieve of loan to vawue that the Group is prepared W ierd gt

lence and there s g risk that forecast ievels of ircomie are
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b) Credit risk
Custorner credi risk 1s mitigated through the Group's credt control poidcies, whicn are in p.ace to ensure
that cur customers have an agproprate credit hustory and are maonitorec on an ongong bass

c) Liquidity risk
Lguidiny nsk are maraged by ensuring tiat sufficent cash s avalaole w fund cortinding and future operations

Liguidity risk arses on bank loans ir place across the Group and 1s maraged trough careful morionrg of
covenarts and sensibie ievels of debt. Borr "J\N\”‘f_] = an A ong-term basie, whereas our revenue s recaivaed
troughout the year, as well as interest and redermchiors on our short-terrn ioan bock Cash flow rskis
maraged through ongoing cash flow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient to meet list lites a5 they
fall cue

2R UL0 v aTi o T Can e s

At the year end the Group had capital commitraents as follows:

2022 2021
Group e o £000 OOO B
Ccmrrjctf d fur bt not orf“vw(* = ir tnese Anancia s 347,254 90.15%
Undrawn faciEt @3 or Gans 10 borrcwers 173,600 92.68%
At 30 June the Group had total future muninrurn lease payrments uncer non-canceilable operatirg leasas
as follows
2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
‘ S £'000 ‘ £'000 £:000 £000
Payments due
Mot iator thar one year 8,707 661 8031 749
Later than cne yedr and not later than fve 31,627 726 30,369 1,686
Years
Ld'm th an WD years 95 564 - 118,932 g
135 998 1,387 157.332 2444

The Grous Faz no other off-calance sheet arrangements (2021, nonel.

Lnder sections 3344 and 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guarantead ail cutstanding liabilit:es on those comparies taking the exemption to wnich the subsidianes st
on pages 79 w0 90 were subect (o at the 30 June 2022 unt'l they are satisied in full These listilitiee total
£915m Such guarantees are enforceable against Fern Trading Lirrited oy any person to whorr any such
liability is due

The Comrpany had na capital or other commutmerts at 35 June 2022




4§ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JiJ

B3 00 vsoae ey Ty vene g Sor

Cn 1t July 2022, Fern Tradirg Developrent Limited ('FTDL). a Subsfd{af\/ of the Greup. successfuily sold
Darl ngton Poirt Hodoo Py Lirmted w0 Octopus Ausiralia Master Trust A srnall profit of EBE2.000 wes made

on ine sae

Cn the 1st of December 2022, the Group

robile - cerses from Trree UK, viz a Strate

C\

(\
@
l')

ed nghts ta 3 £2%m cred t yvoucher and the rignt 1o use

Y

g:C Q.o- neclivity Agreement, Tius making the frst step owargs

L

becorming an mobile virtual network operaor,

A T S ST A A

Under FRS 102 22.1A disc.osdres need not be given of rransactions erdered o betwaer two or more

mempiers ¢f a Group, provided that sny sucsiciary which s a oarty 1o the trarsact'on s who'ly owned by

such a merr

Durning the vear, fees of £77934,000 (2021, £61,124,C00) were charged to tre Group by Octopus
Irvestrments Limit &d relatec party dus Lo its signifc er the entity Octopus [vesiments
Y g
=

VE
Limited was recharged iegal and grofessiona: fees wotaling £10.155 (2021 £16 5001 by tne Groun At the

year end, an amount of £5 5080 (2021, £21%.000) was cutstancing which s ircluded n trade creditors.
The Greoup s erttied to a pmrt share as a resuit of it irnvestmentin Ter ao LLP a relsied narly cue to key

managernent persornei i common, in 2022 a snare of profit equal 1o £5 245 000 (2021 £44% 000 nas

been recogmsed by the (;.roup Al tre year end, the Group 1as aninterest ntne member’s caoial of
£35452,000 (2022 £11,000,000) and accrued incomes oue of £5 276,000 (2021 £479,000)

e Group engages in lendirg aciivities wh ohincluge balances orovices to relateu parties Rega
~linies with <e) management personnalin common, loans of 263,450,000 (2071 £173 224,000, acoruad

ncome of £19,789,000 (2020 £26,202.030) ard deferred income of £r. (2021 £101,000) wer

gt year end During the year interest income of L7180.000 (2020, £17.28L000) ar ]

£53€,000) were recognised in relation o trese lcas.

During te year tre Group acguirad 9 reserve power cornoanies from comsenies managed by Octopus
(=10 5

o
Investments Limited, 3 related party See noi 27 &) for details © thp corrpanies acqurred
Asat 30 June 2022 Enl {2021 £3,950.2/5) was owed to the Cormgany by Bracken Tradirg Lirnitad, a relaeg

party by key managermeant persornel n corrmon

Otrer tan the ransactions disciosed aoove, the Comoany's other reiated party lransa

se
whaolly cwnea subsi ’jlor)’ rmembers o tne Grouo

s

o
@]

nne ooinon of the grreciors, trere is no Gt mate cortroiling carty or parent company
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26

a) Group structuring review

We have conddcted a review of prior years accounting

treatment of irtercompany restr

ructunng In this

review management identfied uramortsed gootwill balances i refation to these transacuons. We have

adjusted tne previous years (o reflect the implerrentatior of amortisation backdated to when the refevant

transaclions occurrad Tne accumrulaled

rpact for the goodwill arort
(214

Usation in the profit and loss for 2020

was L8 (2020 E5 2 the rrovemant of £2.77n has geen restawed througrout the 2021 comparative
ruTers Asurmary o the impact of the correction s provided be.o
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group £°000 E DOO £’000
3000y .M' 583,988 ( 335) 5786
Retamed earnings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
G':o"{?m o £'000 £'000 £'000
qoodmt 602,711 18,049 594,662
fetained carnings 123,920) 8,049 (115,871)

As part of the review of the ntergroup “estructurng merticred agove, maragemen: identified one of the

restrdctures had been incorrectly eccounted forir 2 sul section of the group Na further errors were

discoversd 'nthe review. Tne accumulated irnpact for gocdwill amortisat:on in

the prefit and loss for 2021

was £2.5m (2020 L1 3m), the moverment of £1 2 has been restated througnaut the 2021 camparative

rurrbers This impact o the 2020 opening

g etaired earnin:

gs was offset by £2 1m written ba

debT expenses. Management have corrected the dentified errcr wein the

following imoact

ck agains: bad

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
20 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group e £'000 . £000 E'000
Cocawll T sazses | (2918%) 554,805
Rotaned carnings 41,185 899 42,084
Cebtors 842,545 (2,724} 838,825
Creditors amcunts faling due within one year (232,813) 496 (232,317)
Fxed assets 1,346,655 30.512 1,377,167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Growp e 5000 go0 . ..E000
6580ww\. & s g o s e e Aegfﬁf . ey . 574748 .
Retaned earnings (123.920) (321 (124,241}
Deptors 600,726 (2.724) 588,002
Craditors amounts falling due within one year (207.318) 496 (206,822}
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1.581.682
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b} Deferred tax adjustment

We have conducied a review of all consclidat.on entries ar subsectiors of the group We have identified an
error releling 1© 20192 wnen ceferred tax adjustmerts ware eniered as a consolidation e*‘tr/ and had
subseguenty not been reversed. We have checked the tax per subsidiary account anc have ensurea that the
relevant balances are correct. The error was posted at & conzoldated level orly ana has now been corrected:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

£ 000 £000 £'000

41,185 [4,764) 36421

Credtors amaousts faumg dug witne ona year (232,813} 4,764 {228,049)

This has a krnock efect into June 2021, tne restated balanices are as folows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) ({restated)

Qroup ) . £ 000 ) :F’ODO ]
Retained earmings {123,920} (4,764) 128684
Cregtors amourts faling due witrn cne year (207,318} 4764 (202,554

N precarng the tax compotations for 2027 the Croup’s tax advisors have Nolcet an overicoked
assumption in previous years tax consolication caloulations. Witnin tne oreviously unreccgnizes deferred tax
assets held with in tne groue sorme were availatle on a consoticated leve, o offset the Croup's deferred tax
Lapiity. Or an indvidual compary basis the deferred tax in previcus years had besn correstly recogrised A
part of these deferred assets are in relation o cash flow hedges held witm.n the growp whizh are accounted
for with n airer comprenensive Income. Tne accumuiated immpacs for tre tax cnarge in the profit and loss
for 2021 was £15m (2020 £15.3m) the moverrert of 200k has been restated throughout the 2021
comparative numbers

A summary of the impact of the correction s provided below:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group ) £‘000 £000 £000
Retained earrirgs 41,185 (15,299 25,886
Cash How hedge reserve 63,837 {(2.875) 59,962

Deferrad tax Lrovicions (36.484) 19,174 {17,310)
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group £'000 £000 £000

Restar oo f}érrﬁng:—: (123,820 ,Olg)

Casn fiuyw Fodgoe reserve 17.098 14,979

Diafarred oy prows ons {38,145) (20,933)

Summary of prior period adjustments:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 20 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group e ) E'0Q0 £000 £000
Retsined eamings T T A es 13829) 27356

Coon wit 583,988 (34.517) 549471

Cebiorns 842545 {2,724) 836,825

Fixeq assels 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,167

Dieferred tax prov sians (36.484) 19,174 (17.310j

Cash fiow neqge reserve £3.837 (3.875) 59,962

Crediters amounts fallirg due within one year (232,813 5259 {227,554}

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group ~ EOCO 5'000 } £000

Goodwill 602,711 {36,011) 566,700

Sebtors 600,726 (2.724) 588.002

Fixed assefs 1551170 30,512 1.581.682

Deforrod tax provisions [38.145) 17212 (200,933)

Cash flow hedge reserve 17,098 {2,119} 14,979

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year {20/,318) 5,25% (202,059
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2F s L oo o

a} Reserve Power acquisition

~o,

On 2 July 2027 the Group acquired 9 reserve power s'tes through the purchase of 100% of the share capital

for consideration of £18

The foilowing tasies suromnarise the consideration pald by the Grows, the fa rvalue of the assets acauies

and ne liabilites assurmed at the acguisiion date.

Consideratio
Cash

Total consideration

O

£000

........... B Y R AL ETUPUR S 1)

Cetails of the fai- value of the net &5

R TR

Fixed ass

emmeee Sver smmme o T e cmnoad® SoRmeme s o 0% Feegs aptTeTeig T ¥ Rlmas ttE

Trade and othor recevaties
Prepayments
ash and cash equivalente

Trade and otrer crecdors

Loans
Net assets acquired
Goodwill

Total consideration

Book value
E£000

B T W

50788
294

635
7856
(2.206)
(58,816)
28,5853

=t acquired and goodwill arising are as folows.

Adjustments Fair value

- 7,858

- 12,206)

- {58,816}
r2ess3 0 -

Goodwll resuling from the busimess combination was i

The consoldatec st

a
profit after iy of E686,000 in respect of thiz acguisiten.

rement of comprehiensive neorme for the year ncluces £45 803000 revenue and a
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 Cctober 2021, the Groun acquired Doveryard Limited and its subsidiary threugh the curchaze of
1G0% of tre share capital for consiceration of £12.414,000.

Thne following tables summarise the consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, and
labilities assurned gt Lhe acguisition date,

Consideration £'000

s whan ik xhe e 0 T3 ST TR AEETUMA el A E e S RS 0T T TR OBEAXESAREAR 43T hEe h Flak  wmmaantd wnben Sar wd Fu 2 Tas T Q7T 2T MOR Y GO OEIN G e G BRI YBY HOEBY NI DI IL M Bl

Cash - 12,377

D\re t\/ attriouta

Totalconsideration S 13,414 &

Details of the farr va.ue of the net assets acquired and goodwill arising arg as foliows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value

£ 000 £’000 £000

O B R 0 2 ) 60 TR U PTG G ARFER AL AT S DA RS b o Bt Rn SRBARRE IR b et ac s rmmdanan w wwda FIT0TT T R T DA A BT P NSRS AR WA SRR e an e D B DEY DI RO ER S  BAS

Fixed assets 569 - 569

Tade and oer rece vables 52 - 52
Srepayrrents and accrued incormne 193 - 182

Glle c;rd QJH frefjuo 5

Net assets acqmred

Ccoc
Totalconﬂderatlon
Cooawll, resulting frem the business combination was £13.067.000 and has ar estimated useful Lfe of 25

vears, reflecting the Jfespar of tre assets acaured

The corsoudated statement of comorehersive ncome for the year includes Enil of revenue and & icss
before tax of £123.000 in respect of tnis acquisition
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c) bulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, the
purchase of 100% of tre shae Ca

owing tables summarse the Cconsia

and the liabitities assurrie at tne acau's

Group acauired Dulacca Wi Foldee
oital for corsiceravon of £115 680,000

itor dae

eration pad oy the Croug, trie far vaiue of the assets acauired,

A st of the entit es acaorred included 1~ note 29

Consideration ) L AUD'OOO ; Exchangf Rate ‘ME:'ODO
L dm‘,ﬁ, o ibitsnan ¢ =t £ b | S E T« TSR £ 84S 217 507 . T atentan 115085
Direcily attniputable cosis 1,126 18904 595
Total conéiaeratlon o o /218 Sﬂﬁiww T M115,686m
Details of the fair value of the net assete acquired and intangible ansng are as folows.
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
i AUD'OOO AUD'000 AUD 000 F'ODO ___£000 IVE'OOO
L‘X st;r 107633 e 107,@33{ S J6937 e 5u6 ;7
Trade ard other recevaties 10,131 - 10,137 5,357 - 5,357
Cash anc cash eguivaients 103,072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54,525
“ruals er-fi (1 =farred ncome 10 952) - (10 9541 (5,793) -
209 884 h o 209 884 ‘ 111 026 T o
Total cons:deratlon lllll ) . 218 685 77777 S 115 680

Irtargibles resul
reflecting the
Tre conscoldated staterment of comprehe

tax of £E237.000 in respact of this acquisihic

Ifespar of the assets acgures

asve INCome

ting from the asset purcnase was £4,654.000 and has ar estmated asefL! e of 30 years,

= for the year inc.udes Fnit of revenue and a loss after
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
Or 31 January 2021, the Group acoured Zestec Asset Mangerrent Limited z project sources for rooftop
sclar, ithrough tne purchase of 100% of the share capital for consseeration of £4,76530010.

The followng tables summarise the consideration pa.a by the Grour, the fair value of assats acquired, anc
uabiliies assumed at the acguisizion date

Consideration E 000

R 68 550 ST b KB 6 8 b s Fd €t e me e n % e s oS TR TENEALC 3 el AR ek A R R R S demb ek Tuhaban £ % aas sweanwes 2E TLaprer.cam ecmlat e

Casn 3672

Teferred conaideration -

Diretly attrimstabie costs 1,093
Total consideration 4,765

Cetai coured and gooaw ll arisirg are as follows.

Y
=
(@]
=
o
—
[ty
C
(34l
O
=
—
]
(D
.D
ot
a
)
w1
I
-
193]

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

£'000 £000 £000

BARARSLBRIEAE H 16k bht ERn Shmme manRad s Bhbuknsmadecacs FTIaTsy T TTIATRNT 00 mAn v wiinny B S N s TAE S LI LR Pt

Fixed assets i56 - 156
Trade arid other credirors (574) - (574)
Trade and other receranles 420 - 400
Cash ard cash eguivalents 1,019 - 1019
Other loans (46) - (46)
Netassetsacquired  ess -  ess

Totalcons'lderatlon - o 4755

Coodwill resaiting from the business combinaucen was £3,810,000 and nas an esumated useful bfe of 10

v

years, reflectng the estimated lifespar of the assets acguired.

The consolidated staterment of comorehenzive income for the year :ncludes £128,000 of ~evenue and a loss
pefore tax of £494,000 - respect of this acguisition,
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e} Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 May 2022, the Groun ecguired Elivia =olaings Limited and its sunsidiaries, through the purchase of
00% of the share capital for consideraton of £31.682 000

The foiowing tables summarise the consideration paid by the Groug, the “air value of assets acguired, and
labilities assumed at the accusition date A HSL of the entities acguired are mc!uded ir note 29

Consideration £'000
Direcily attnoutabe coste 685
ol considera“o; et et ftem 4 Shn et e heiinee e e oo e e e 111 e WH?&:G;;,

Detals of tre fair value of tnie net assets acquired and goodwill arsing are as foliows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£'000 EODD
11.767 - 11767

Stoce £9,939 - 69939
Trade and cther destors 2.609 - 2.609
Cash and cash equralents 11,603 - 11653
Accruals and defrrred wcame (420) - (420
Brovisicns (330) - 930}
Deforrec tax {1400] 4600
- ’69453)
;;et assets acquired 00) 50 13.‘5"-
Gl S - - ST 1J51 7
Totaicons:deratlon - . S 31 684"

Goodw ll resutng from the business comomat-on was £1.551,C00 and has an estirated useful Ufe of 10
years, reflecting the lfespan of the assets acquired

Tre consol catea steiement of cormgrehensive income for e year ircluges revenue of £25,034,600 and a
profit cefore tax of £2,502.000 in respect of s acguiermon
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Cur reported results are precared in accordarae wiin Unied Grgdom Acco

Financial Reparting &
Report Ir rmeasurng

derived from cur reported resulls in o

are considered non-

Net debt

We provide net deix in adds

AL STATEMENTS 20 JUNE 2022

.

swandard 102, as detaled n the Financial tete

i our performarce, the inancial meazdras that

I

GAAP fnancizl measares

o 1o cash and gross cobr as a way of assessinrg ©

sur overall o

Lnting Standacds, nciuding
mMerts slacing on page 35 of the Annual
we Use Include ticse that have been

dor to exmnate factors that distort year-on-year cormparisons. These

871, 918

i comouteg as folows
2022
Nere £000
Hdr i ur»ans dmj cwﬂmram 16 1,044,218

OU’rr lom

t4, 15 5,364

871 918

(1/2 478:

Gross debt 7 1,049,582 ‘
\,mh at aam ar:d Ir hand 1 1256,415)

Net debt

793,167

699 440
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EBITDA

Farnings before interes:, tax, depreciziion and arnorusation (EBITOAT} is calculated by adjusting profit after
tax for interest, tax, depreciation ard arnortsation, 1v addition, t2 income ang experses that do not relate to
the day to day coeraticns of the Group We provide EBITDA in additon o proft after tax as it allows us to
ascess our performance without the effects of financing anc cap tal expenditures

Tre following table detzils the adjustments made o the reported results

{restated)
2022 2021
. £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year . W0 (31.012)
Addg
Arorisaton of intangble assets 2 37849 37,704
Irapalrreent of intarg ble assets & 7913 -
Depreciation of tangibie assels 2 101.802 84,697
Iriterest payat e and sirmilar expenses & 33554 36,067
Excephional items 1106 -
Tax 7 16,294 8.249
Less
Incorne from other fxed assel mvestmaonts (5,249) (449)
Share of operating profit In jo.nt venture - (1,755]
FroM o~ disposal of subsidianes (79,532) (#8,568)
irterest recevable and similar income & {130} (997
EBITDA ' ' ' B . 194,916 104,036

Nete 26 detals the prior pericd adjusiments

|
i
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25

Detalls of the subsiciary undertakings are as folows

Name
Abbots R-pton Solar Energy Holdma Limited™

Adauard

- '
“ '

soiar SPY L Lirnited”

)

Agrisol-2 SARLT

Al Networks Limited”
Allpoints Fiore Limuteg®™

Adcnencarroch Erergy Limites®”
Auguhine Land Comrpany Limited™™”
Averue Solar Fann Lmited”
Baribury Power Lomited”
Batsnlaire 5 SARL®

Batisclaire 7 SARL®

Beereay Energy Limted”™
Beighton Energy Limited”
BemnneLr Wind Farm Lid™
Bellhcuse Energy Limited”

Birch Estate Solar Limited”

Blaky Sclar Farm Lirnited”

BNRG IOW Limited™

Bolam Energy Limited™
Boomerang Energy Lirmited
Boreas Energy Limized”

Eratton Fleming Limited™

Breck Soiar Limited™

Bryn Yr Gdyn Solar Developments Hotdings
Limited™

Bryn ¥r Odyn Solar Develooments Limitec™
Bury Power Limited™

Cadoxton Reserve Power Lirnited”

Cawtas Energy Limited™

Cark Lirnited®

NRTHO Tuh rboRn ko RERY REGaAT 1 BA

Country of Class of
incorporation _shares |
UK o Orcio
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
K Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
France Ord:nary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
freland Crdinary

e PR

Holding
100% h
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1003%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

HoE“c‘ii\n&g cor‘%gar‘wy
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Lnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding campany
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Name

SRR anntad ¢ SRERRRIRR S oL TR R ppmr v

Caswelt Sotar Farm Limiteg™

Cathiori Erergy Limited?®”

Causiigey Limites™

Cedar Erergy and Infrastructure Lirniteg

CEFE Berceronre SARLT

Certraie Eotienne de Production d Erergie

Grardhos SARLY

> Marsarne TARLY

[
m
T
m
[
I

CEPE Haut du Sau's’

CEFE de la Rocne Cuatre Rvieres SARLT
CEFZ du pays de 3t Seine SARL

CERS SAS

Cheison Meadow Energy Limited™”
Chusoon Sciar Farm Holdings Lirmited”™
Crittenrg Solar Two Limted”

Cilgwyr Energy Limaed’

Clarn Farm writeg”

Crararnend Salar SPy 1 Limeted”™

-

CLs O

eveiopments Limited”

C

CLP Envircgas Limited”
C_= Services Limited
CL®E 1920 Limted’

LSE 1S5S Limed™

CLPE Projects 3 Lirmiteo
CLPe RGC — 1 umited

S S s B P B st

de

Country of
incorporati

UK
UK
UK
UK

Frarce
France
France
France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK

Class of
on shares

i R 58 88 e T VAR 5 ©

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crginary

Ordmary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdiinary
Crdinary

Principal

Holding activity

S b A - %R S i o oD

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G60%
160%
100%
1002
100%
100%
100%

100%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant cornpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of O&M
services

Dormant company
Dorrnant company
Hotding company
Holding company
Holding company
Haolding company
Halding company
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generation

ST et
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Name

B N U SR AE A P PANE PO NG SRS RIS S T

CLPE ROC - 3A Limitea”

CLPE ROC - 4 Limited™

CLPE RDC — 4A Lmited™

Clyne Power Limited™

Cotslerworith Energy Lirnited

Cornon Brnidge Erergy Limiteg™
Cotesbach Energy Limized”

Cour Wind Farm (Scotland) Limitea™

Craprell Farm Limied”

Crayfern Homes [South Coast) Limied?!
Crayfer~ Lirmitad®

Crayferr Suney (Sinfoic) Limited!!

Craymarst Lmited”™

Cress'ng Solar Farm Limitoed”

Culvery Power Limiteg™

Cynonr Power Lim:ted”

Cafer feserve Power Limited™”

Cary House Sclar Limited”

Deepdale Farm Solar uimited™
Doveryard Limied”

Crapers Farrm Limited™

Culacca Erergy Project Co PTY Ltd™
Dulacca Erergy Project FinCo PTY Lid!?
Dulacca Enargy Project Holdco Cao PTY Lig?
Dulacca WF Holdeo PTY LtdH

Cyffryn Brodyn Limited™

Ezkring Limited™

Elecsol Camargue SARL?

Elecsol France 7 SARL”

Elecsol France 11 SARL®

E:ecsol France 15 SARL?

Eiecsol France 16 SARL?

Country of Class of Principal
iqﬂc\:ﬁgm&m&ion sI:gres Holding activity .
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ui Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% Ej‘i’;‘nogr;g‘;&
ox ey 100x G
UK Ordinary  100% gj‘!’;lrfg”pggi
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Enargy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary S0% Energy generation
France Ordinary G0% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name

AT, 1 T B ARbbescdul

Elecso. France 22 SA9LY

FLeE s

Elecso. France 24 SARLS

Elecsol Faut Var SARLY

s

A

Elios Energy & Franca SAS
Elos Energy 2 Lir ted
Elos Energy 3 Frarce SAY
Elios Energy Holoings 2 umited”™
Ehos Energy Haidings 3 Limited™
Elios Snergy He'dings Limrsted™

Euos Renewaagle Energy Limited”
Elvia Developrent Finance Limmed®t
Elvia Hoidings Limited

Eliva Homes (Central) Limited*
Eliva Homes (Dormant 2) Limited!s
Elvia Hornes, (Grange Road) Lirmuted™

Elviz homes (Netley; Limited!

vy

Eivia B s {Southerny Lmited™!

5
3
m
in

£lvea Homes (Surpiton) imnited ™

Elvia Homes _imnitectt

Elivia dMorth Lir teg®’

Elivia Oaford Limped™

Elivia Soum Lirmted -

O R e PR L L T Y TECO s

Country of Class of
incorporation shares |
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Ordinary
UK Deferred
Prefererce
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Grdinary
UK Ordinary

Holding acti\fi}y

AT

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buitdings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buitdings

Construction of
dormestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
buitding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domeastic buildings

Development of
building projects

Development of
buitding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Constructon of
dornestic buildings

P T T
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Name

ALY LA Y ARG S BTN B BER Y B AR Rk R YR E ot B bt ud s Bond oo d e € oo

Euvia Southern Limited!?

Eiiicombe Lmited”

Erergy Power Resources Limiteg™

EPR E.y imized”
EPR Eye Limited™

EFR Ganford Limated™

i

PR Renewable Enargy Limited”
EPR Scotiand Limiteg ™

EPR Thetford Limited”

Cucalyptas Energy Hold ngs Limited”™
Eucalyptas Energy Limited™

Feltwell Energy Limited”

Fern Energy Cour Holdings Lrmized”
Fern Energy Hold ngs tirmited™

Fern Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Wind Foldings Limiteg™
Fern Fiore Limiteg™

Fern Heathcare Haoldings Limitag™
Fern Infrastructure Limited”

Fern Renewable Energy Limited™
Fern Hooftop S2lar (A) Limited™

Fern Rooftop Sclar (BBD)™

Fen Rooftop Sclar (Zestec) Limited™
Fera Trading Developrment Limted”

Fern Trading Grodp Limited

Fern LUK Power Developrments Limited”

Fibropnos Limited™
Four Borrows Lmited™

Fraistnorpe Wind Farm Lirmited™

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
K
UK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK

Principal

Holding activity

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordnary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

g 8 Aa%Ae 2 KY A

Cornstruction of

domestic buildings

Buying and selling of

own real estate
Energy generation

Energy projoct
developrrnent and
management
SETvices

Energy genaration
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding compariy
Energy generation
Holding ccmpany
Holding company
Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding compary
Hotding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Supply of fertiiser
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Garlaff Energy Limited® Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Giganat Fibre Lt UK Ordinary  100% ;i‘;’gu‘l‘fgf’k
Guganet Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% ;igdeui?g\frk
Glerchamber Wind Energy Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Grange Wind Farrm Limited™ UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Guardbride SP z 0.0" Poland Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Harbourne Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker (Mount Ml Ltd* UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Haymaker (natewosal Hoiomgs Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding cornpany
Hayrnaker (Natewosod; Jtd” UK Crdinary 1007% Energy generation
Hayraaker (Gaklards) Hold'ngs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Haymaker (Oakiands) Lid™" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Helm Power 2 Lirmmitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Helm Fower Limrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Higher Knagp Farm Liriad™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Hitl End Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hollarmoor Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hull Reserve Power L:rmitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Hursit $PY 1 Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Immunghar Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Iraels Power Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Jameson Road Energy Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
curassic Fiore Hoicings Limitea™ UK Ordinary 90% Hotding company
Jurassic Fiore Limited UK Crdmary 90% Egsur:;zfrk

Kilrn Power Lirr teg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Larigan Power Lrmed” UK Crdinary 100% Frergy generation
Lenham Soiar Limited”” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Little 7 So.ar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Littletan Sotar rarm ©rited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LU Commur cations Ld™ UK Crdinary 100% Fibre network

production

Loddon Fower _r teg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatian
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Name ‘ ‘ B
Lovedesr Limvited”
Luminance So ar Limeed™
M12 Sciutons Limites”™
Mansten Thorne Limited”
March bEnergy Limteg”
Marden Power Limmied™
Marley Thaich Sciar Limitea™
Meadows Farm Zimited™
Me.bourn Solar Lirrated™
Melton LG Energy Lmited”

Meiton LG Helaing Limited”
Meiton LG ROC Limted™

Meiton Renewabie Znergy (Holdings; Lim-ted”
fdeton Renewable Erergy Newco Limted™
Meiton Renewabie Erergy UK Limited

Ml ML Farm Solar umited”

Mirgay Farm Holding Lirmiteg™

ME2 Decoy Lid”

MEP Strete Ltd™

MSE Tregassow Limited™

MTS Hatchlanas Solar Lid™

Nevern Power Limited™

New Row Farm Limited™

Newlands Solar Limited™

Ninnis Farm Limited”™

MNorth Ferrot: Fruit Farm Limited”
Northwich Power Lirmited™

MNotos Energy Lirritec™

Ogmore Power Limited™

Clanall Energy Recovery Holdings Limied™

Cne Asnford Healthicare Limited

One Hatfeld Hospital Limited

Country of Class of
incorporatior!“ shal!'ggm
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Uk Ordinary
UK Ordinary
1JK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
K Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Holding

Principal
activity

106%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

89%

90%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Hoiding company
Hoelding company

Asset leasing
company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Provision of
healthcare services
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Name

eI

Palfreys Barto

Parciay Limites”

Limited™

Samrnat SARL ¢

Care sarvices for a

Energy generation

Energy generation

Energy generation

Country of Class of Principal
, incorporation shares Holding activity
One realtncars Partners Limited UK Ordinary 85% Helding company
Orta Wedgehil! Solar Holdings Lirnited"” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Orta Wedgehuli Solar Limited” UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
7 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
FParciau Holdings Limited”™ LK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Park Broacband Limited™ UK Ordirary  t0o%  bre network
production
Fearmat Solar 2 Lid™ IJK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
itehford (Condover Airheld & Stocekbaton) .
Pichiond iCondover Arfied & Stockbatcr] UK Ordinary 100% Energy generstion
Fitts Farr Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Porthos Sciar amited” UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Pymz Lane Solar Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Queens Park Road Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Rangeford Care Lrmited” UK Ordinary 100% .
retirement village
Rangeford CTnertsey Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Retirement village
developrnent
Rangefora Cirencester Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development
Rangeford Dorkirg Limited”™ UK Ordinary  100%  hedrementvillage
development
Rangefard Foldings L mited” UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Rangsford Fickenng Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development
Rangeford RAR Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Retrement vilage
development
Rangeford Retirernent Lving Foldings Lig™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Rangeford Stapleford Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
development
Reacres Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
Redlake Power _miedg” UK Crdinary 100%
Rysion Estate Cimited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Seloy Power Limited” UK Crdinary 100%
SFPF bre Crruten® UK Crdinary 100% Fibre network

production

Ay
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Country of Class of Principal
MO e e e+ s o e COTBOTYtION shares  Holding activity .
Singrug Halangs Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
SIngrug cimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Six Hils Lane (Ragdate] | imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Skelprocke Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
slaighiergate Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ensrgy generation
Snetterion Renewable Power Fuels Zimited” UK Ordinary 100% fﬁeﬁply of biomass
Snetterton Renewable Power Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Sngtterton Renewable Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf LPO8 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf SPOL SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarf SPO2 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generaucn
Solarf SPO4 SARLS France Ordinary 1007% Energy generaticn
Sowarfi SPCS SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sotarh SPOR SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf SPLC SARL France Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Southcompe Farmr Limited™ UK Ordnary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Limited™ 1K Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limted”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steaafast Rudge Solar Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Steadfast Shipton Bednger Sowar Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stoneyritl Energy Limited® UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Sulis Energy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Surmrmerston Inergy Limited® UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP™ UK NA 50% NA
Swish Fibre Contracting Limited® UK Ordinary  100% ggjﬁg’n‘”k
Swish Fiore Limited® UK Ordinary 80% Holding comparty
Swish Fibre Networks Lid® UK Ordinary 100% Srborgurlfgvnork
Swesh Fibre Services Lirmitad® UK Ordinary 80% ;irk;rsuszg}ork
Swash Fibre Yorkshire® UK Ordinary 100% Fibre network

production

Swish Traaing Limited™ UK Ordinary 807% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

TGC Salar 102 Limted”

TGO Sclar 88 Limted”

TCC Solar 93 Limited™

The Fern Power Cormpany Lim:ted™
The Hollies Solar Farm Limited™
Tharesby Estate (Budby) Lirm ted”
Tilinrgham Power Limited™”
Tochilis Energy Lamited™
Tredown Farm Lim ted™

Turves Solar Limiten”™

UKSE 15 Solar Limited™

United Mines Energy _imitea”™
VST g

Victoria Salar Limited™

viners Engray Lim teo

Vit71f Lirnited ™

Violtafrance G1 SARLY

Voltafranca 05 SARL?

voltafrance 13 SARL?

voltafrance SARLY

Yorboss Limited™

Vorboss S ne?
Wadswic< Green Limiteg™

WagswiC< Green Property Services Limter”

Warrnington Fower Lirmized”

Wazter.oo Solar Par< Holaings Lirmited™
Water.oo Sclar Park Limited™

Week Farm 2 Lried”

Westwood Power _miteg”

Wesrwood Solar Lirm ted™

OSSR DA Kt 2 s ns TS R BN B Ao o rmen e

Country of Class of Principal
inco\!;p\?ration sharffw . Holding actIVIty
U&; Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 10G0% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 108% Energy generaiion
UK Ordinary 1G60% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% nguz(?;\;ork
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Orginary  100% ;gjﬁf;;ork
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
fFrance Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Halding company
USA Ordinary  100% g‘gdeu‘l?;‘; ork
UK Ordinary 100% Retirement village
operatcr
UK Ordinary 100% zz;\rlwlw(r;fs;;ag?e
UK Ordinary 100% Frergy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Country of Class of Principal

NMe o i COFPOMAtiON shares Holding activity s
Vetherden Energy L‘|m‘ited" UK o 'Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wrarf Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whicdon Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Winney Hill Erergy Lirmred”™ UK Orchinary 100% Energy generation
Pimoells Suiar Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 10G% Holding company
Wolvernampton Power Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farra Limited ™ UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Huliavngton Holaings Limited™ UK Orgnary 16C% Holding company
WESE Huliavngton Limited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
WSE Park wWall Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limized™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Asser Managernent Limted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fer;]RcoFtJr,Scl ar(BBDW L\fr\ed AT R 8+ £ ARG £ A A KR A RS S S L 09,708750“25
Cuckoo internet Lid 31/08/2022
vitrifi Digital Limited 13/07/2022

400 Lirrited 2211112022

‘Subsid-anes oxempt from audit by virlue of 34804 of the Companies Act 20066
TSubs dianes exempt from audit oy vinuo of $4/94 of the Companes Act 2006
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Dissotved or sold durmg the year and up untll ssgmng ) ﬂ Dﬁge ”””””””
;:.!r;meer, Ho Lmr“s Lirrited e 20/G7/2€)41‘
Ridae Wrd Acquistion Limited 2010712021
Fern Energy RicgeWind Acquisitions Limited 14/09/2021
Fern Energy RidgeWind Holdings Limited 2140972021
Fern Energy Partnershios Holdings Limited 21/09/2021
Fraisthorpe (Hoiding) Lirited 25/03/2022
DY Oldhatt Energy Recovery Lirmited 13/05/2022
Comrm?21 L=d 15/08/2022
Carlington Point Holocs Py Limited Q8/07/2022
Darlirgton Fowt Solar Farrn Pty Linmited 08/07/2022
Darlington Pomt Subncidco Pry Limited 08/07/2022
Nargic Power Develcarnert Lirmited 2311272021
Voyrinkargas Wind Fanm Oy 23/12/2021
Saunamaa Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2021

Tne regiserad office of all cormpanies Usied above is at 6th Floor,

33 Holhorn, London, Ergianc, ECLN 2HT

except for thase set oul below:

i ul Grzybowska 2/29 00-131 Warsaw, Polard
7 Pinsent Mg s LLP, Capital Squere. 58 Mornson Street, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 88°P
% 1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1APR

4. 22 rue Alpronse de Neuvive, 75017 Pans, Francs

5 6tr Floor, 2 Grand Canel Sguare, Dublin 2, D02 AS42 treiand
5 The Carage Houze, Station Works, Staticn Road, Claverdon, Warwickshire, United Kingdom, CV35 8PE

7. Zone industrielle de Courtine 215 Rue Du Mourelet 84300 Avignon, trance

8. 12 zalshbury Piace, London, 2-gland, WilH 1F3

S, The Corporaticn Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center, 1203 Crange Street, Witmirgior 13801

I United States

S0 4tk Faoor Saitire Court, 20 Caste Terrace, Edincurgh, Scotand. cHl 22

11 Apolle Eouse, Mercury Pak Wycombe Lane, Wooburr Creen, H gr Wycombe, Eqgand, 5210 CHE

12 Level 33 iC Colins Street, Melbourne, Victorna, 3000, Asstrala
13 Beaufort Court, Sqgg Farm Lane, Kings Langley, HertfPorgshire, W4 8LR
4 7-8 Stratford Place, _ondgon, England, W1C 1AY

The direciors beiieve that Ire

arry ng value of the investmenis Is svpporied Ly the'r underying net assets
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Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Ferr Trazing Lim-ted s an unisted company, Every rronte, our Boarz of Drectors agrees a price at which it
2l be wellirg to ssue "ew shares The share price s uraudited,

The figures beiow inciude the share orce of tne nrevious parent (now Fern Trading Group Limied) as wel
as tois entity.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited
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Performance 5 ca'culates based or the sale price for Fern's chares at 2 June sach year The snare prce s
rot subject to audit by Ernat & Young LLP

Annual dizerete performance

Financial Year Dsscrete share prlce performance
June 2021-22 - 9.91%

June 2020-21 - 4.87%

Lvmré 2 VV'—ZVO 7 o . - ”0.33% o

June 20.8-19 6.23%
unezois  108%

Juﬂ’:‘2J 7 . - - 7 o - 5.54%

Jung 2015-16 7 | 3.83%

Jure 2013-14 - 3.72%

Jwe 2019 1) 3.97%

June 2011-12 1.02%

Source Octopus Investrnents Limited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers

DHractors i Registerad office

PS Latham ! ath Floor, 33 Holoorn,

K3 Willey P London, England ECIN 2HT
PO Barow

T Arthur (zopointad 1 July 2022) { indepsndent audlors

Ernst & Young LLP

Company secretary i Sedford House,

Cctopus Compary Secretanal Services Limited 16 Bed‘ord Sirear,
‘ PoBelfast BT2 70T

Company numbey

12601635 :

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains ceriain forward-ooking Stalements reated 1o tre Company's fulure business
and financa. perforrmance and future events or developmerts Trese statemerts are based on the current
knowledze and expecranons of managerient and are supect o assumptians, nsks and uncertainties

, SOME
of which are relatzd to factors that are beyond the control of the Cornpany Accorgingly, no assarance can
o regardimg past trends or

representaticn that sucn trends or actvities will conanue in tne ‘uture Past

e given that any particular exsectation will be met and forward-look ng statemns
otivitias should not de tak

%]
3
al
o
[\

performance cannot be velied o as a guide (o future perforrance, Notmrg in this Annual Renort should be
corsirued as a nroft forecast




